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THE FAMILIES OF FRANCES WILSON OSBORNE AND G.W. OSBORNE, JR.
PHOTOGRAPHS AND ARTICLES ON THE HISTORY OF THE ANCESTORS AND DESCENDANTS OF FRANCES WILSON OSBORNE (1851-1940) AND GEORGE WASHINGTON OSBORNE, JR. (1846 - 1927)
THE FAMILIES OF FRANCES WILSON OSBORNE AND G.W. OSBORNE, JR.
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6/30/10
The Parents of Frances Wilson Osborne
Troubled Times
by Glenn N. Holliman

Photographed below are Caroline Greer Wilson (1828 - 1911) and her husband, Isaac Wilson (1822 - 1864), the parents of Frankie Wilson Osborne. The couple married in Ashe Co., NC in 1849.
[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TClV-wbR2-I/AAAAAAAAAV0/7PniLAjdRtE/s320/Caroline+Greer+Wilson+%26+Isaac+Wilson,+Jr..jpg]Isaac Wilson was a successful trader and farmer, owning several hundred acres of timber, pasture and cultivated fields nestled along the Tennessee and North Carolina borders. The elevation of the farm is over 3,000 feet and surrounded by tall mountains. When the Civil War broke out in Ashe County, North Carolina, he sided with the South and became a lieutenant in the Confederate Army. At this writing we know little of his service record.
In the early 1860s law and order broke down in an Appalachian society where cousin fought cousin. Ironically, the Wilsons owned no slaves although Caroline was a fierce Confederate.
The disorder of the times resulted in a type of guerrilla warfare, neighbor against neighbor. On June 16, 1864, my great-great grandfather became a victim when several of his neighbors shot him from ambush in the back while he was plowing his corn field. He died within a few hours. A vicious circle of revenge began that produced additional widows. It was an ugly time, and many years were needed for passions to subside.
My great-grandmother, who was with her father when the shooting occurred, told the story to my mother, Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick, who shared it with me when I was growing up in the 1950s. Only in the first decade of the 21st century did I discover this story on the internet and the book,Neighbor to Neighbor by my great-great uncle William A. Wilson.
Isaac's wife, Caroline, was 36 years old and left with 8 children, all 14 or younger. With help from family and children, she harvested the corn crop that summer and many seasons thereafter. On several occasions in 1864 her home was invaded and ransacked by Union sympathizers. Once she encountered Federal cavalry who were ready to confiscate her horse, when a cousin in the Union patrol vouched for her. She escaped without injury and with her animal.

Obviously, a strong and vibrant woman, she lived until 1911, dying from complications of a broken hip. She and her husband are buried in Wilson Cemetery in Oscar Wilson Cove near Sutherland, North Carolina in Ashe County.
In 2009, my mother, my sister Rebecca Holliman Payne and nephew Sean Murphy visited the cemetery. At the entrance to the Cove is a general store kept by some distant cousins, the Boyds, descendants of the Wilsons. The younger Boyd told us of how Caroline hid the family pewter in a hole in the nearby creek to keep the valuables from the Union Army. Such is our family story....

Next posting, more tales of our Wilson/Osborne ancestors....
POSTED BY GLENN N. HOLLIMAN AT 9:00 AM 0 COMMENTS [image: http://img2.blogblog.com/img/icon18_edit_allbkg.gif] 
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A Book About Our Family
[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TCVjJxfyClI/AAAAAAAAATk/OfmJiV0RMTY/s320/Neighbor+to+Neighbor+001+-+Copy+(2).jpg]by Glenn N. Holliman

In 2007, The Center for Appalachian studies at Appalachian State University in Boonesboro, North Carolina (a town named after one of our ancestors) published an 180 page book entitledNeighbor to Neighbor. The volume is about the family of Frances Wilson Osborne, my generation's great grandmother. Edited by Sandra L. Ballard and Leila E. Weinstein, most of the paper back is a memoir by my generation's great, great uncle The Rev. William A. Wilson (1861 - 1951). His photo (right) and family are on the cover.

Born in Wilson Cove, near Sutherland, Ashe County, North Carolina, William was the last of eight children born to Isaac Wilson and Caroline Greer Wilson. He was the best educated of the children, having graduated from Trinity College (now known as Duke). Raised a Southern Methodist, he was ordained a pastor in that denomination.

In 1890, he accepted a call as a missionary to Japan, and spent the next forty one years mainly in the Hiroshima district. Every ten years he was granted a paid furlough. In his first decade in Japan, he met and married Mary Amelia McClellan, another Southern Methodist missionary. They were to have four children.

In the work Neighbor to Neighbor, Will shares his memories of growing up in the Western North Carolina mountains near Boone, NC to the south east, and Mountain City, Tennessee to the west. He collected stories and tales from his mother and siblings, and in his old age gathered them up in a memoir that remained unpublished in book format until recently.

Of particular interest is the story of the 'bush whacking' and murder of my generation's great, great grand father, Confederate Lt. Isaac Wilson in June 1864 while he was plowing his corn. My generation's great grandmother, Frankie Wilson Osborne, was with him when bullets fired from ambush took his life. Great great grandfather Isaac is buried in the Wilson Cemetery in Oscar Wilson Cove. His son, the Rev. William A. Wilson, the author of the poignant memoir, lies near him.

Neighbor to Neighbor can be ordered from the Appalachian State University bookshop. If they are out of the work, please contact Sandra Ballard, editor of the Appalachian Journal. The volume contains several photographs of Frankie Wilson Osborne and information on both her and G.W. Osborne, Jr., her husband and my great grandfather.

Will tells a story of an America that my grandchildren would not recognize. If you want your children to understand the violence and tragedy of the Civil War, have them read this book. Our immediate ancestors lived and suffered in a manner we can scarce imagine in the 21st century.

Next post, more on our Appalachian Mountain roots....
6/20/10
Short Biographies of the Children of Frankie and G.W. Osborne
by Glenn N. Holliman

Seven children of my great grand parents grew to maturity. Two died in infancy. Although G.W. and Frankie were married in 1867, Frankie did not give birth until 1874. Perhaps there were medical complications. Once the first child was born, many more came until 1893, when Frankie was 42 years old. The information below was drawn from Frankie Osborne diaries.
[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TB1ugE4_4UI/AAAAAAAAASM/BLH6ZxLeNZM/s320/George+Washington+Osborne+and+wife,+Frances+Caroline+Wilson.jpg]This photograph of G.W. and Frances Wilson Osborne is believed to have been taken about the time of their wedding in 1867. Obviously it has been colored. Did they travel to Boone, North Carolina to have their photo taken, the nearest town large enough to have had a professional photographer? Photo courtesy of cousin Phyllis.
As I read over the names below, I am disappointed we know so little of the uncles, not even the dates when several of them died. (More research will reveal these dates.) We know considerable about the descendants of the two daughters as the Stansbery/Holliman families are in touch with the Aker/Adema families, sharing information.

Any information relatives have is welcome. I hope later to do pieces on each uncle and aunt below, and of course their descendants, the many of you who receive this blog. Any corrections or additions encouraged.

Marion Lee Osborne- D August 31, 1874, age six days, Frankie printed a remembrance of this infant sixty years later. Marion is probably buried in Wilson Cemetery, Oscar Wilson Cove Road, Ashe Co., North Carolina.

Toby Miles Osborne - B January 26, 1876 - D 1951. Moved from Bristol, Tennessee to Sumner, Washington in early 1920s. It is believed he was in the automobile business. His children were Eddie Lawrence Osborne, Russell Miller Osborne and Pauline Osborne Smith. Pauline, a favorite grand daughter of Frankie, married Bennett Winston Smith. By the late 1930s, they had a son 'Bennie'. Toby's first wife, Alta died August 18, 1933. Toby remarried but her name is not known.

Leroy Milburn Osborne - B February 17, 1879 - D 1948. In the 1910s, Roy lived in Cleveland, Tennessee. In 1936, his address was 1016 16th Street. It is believed he was a farmer. His wife was Lena (B September 17, 1899). They had four children: Ralph Summers Osborne, Albert Leslie Osborne, Robert Lafayette Osborne and Lucille Osborne.

Bishop L. Osborne - B December 13, 1881 in Ashe County, North Carolina - D June 1965 in Bristol, Tennessee. Bishop was a multi-talented man. He worked as an accountant at King's Department Store, but also wrote and published poetry and columns for the local newspaper. This writer has in his possession a collection of his poems given to me by my mother, which reflect Bishop's patriotic and religious beliefs. His wife was Cora E.Broyles Osborne. Due to a cleft foot, she always wore long dresses. They had one son, now deceased, Vivian Randall Osborne. All are buried in the family plot at East Hill Cemetery in Bristol.

Eddie C. Osborne - B April 25, 1885 D August 29, 1886, age 1 year and 4 months, 4 days. (From a printed remembrance) Probably buried in Wilson Cemetery in Ashe Co., NC.

Bascom Wilson Osborne - B July 5, 1887 - D August 1970) In the 1910s, lived in Baltimore, Maryland and after the early death of his first wife, Dora Catherine Kruger (age 33, buried WoodlawnCemetery, Baltimore, MD), relocated to Louisville and thenOwensboro, Kentucky. He worked for Brodie Motor Company, a Dodge dealership. His second wife's name was Ada. They lived in 1936 at 730 Walnut Street, Owensboro, KY.

Bascom had three children by his first wife: Bascom K. Osborne, Doris Ethel Osborne Akers and Gladys Pearl Osborne Adema. Broken emotionally by Dora's sudden death, the three children went to live with their Aunt Pearl Osborne and her husband David Wright in Damascus, Virginia in 1922. Pearl and David raised the children.

- Bascom K. Osborne - B 1910 - D 1977. Joined the U.S. Navy in 1927 as an enlisted man, served in the Pacific during World War II and retired a high ranking officer.

- Doris Osborne married 'Flea' Akers. They had a daughter Phyllis and a son Michael Akers.

- Gladys Osborne married Howard Adema from Buffalo, NY and in 1938 lived at 39 W. Balcom Street. A daughter, Peggy AdemaNoeltner and a son, Bob Adema live in Florida.

William (Bill) Vestal Osborne - B July 22, 1892 - D 1968. Lived at 1634 7th Avenue, Los Angeles, California in 1938. He was the used car manager of a Ford dealership, Pico Motors in L.A. His wife, whom he married in 1920 was Kathern Rader. They had one daughter, Margaret Shields, whose nickname was 'Willy". There is information the family resided in Bristol, Tennessee until moving west in the early 1920s.

Pearl Osborne Wright - B March 1, 1890 in Mast, North Carolina and D August 20, 1980 in Damascus, Virginia. She married her husband Robert David Wright on December 20, 1911. While they had no children themselves, they raised Bascom's three children. David ran the local electric company, a new high tech industry.

Mayme Osborne Stansbery - B January 16, 1896 - D December 3, 1943. She married Charles S. Stansbery of Afton, Tennessee on April 29, 1914. They had three children: Louise StansberySherwood, Charles S. Stansbery, Jr. and Geraldine StansberyHolliman Feick. Charles S. Stansbery Sr. ran the repair department of the Bristol Ford dealership in the 1920s.
Two Observations
Two, if not three of the sons, went into the automobile industry, taking jobs in the transportation revolution that occurred during their life times. Of the two son-in-laws, one directed a local electric company and another repaired Fords. When these uncles were born these occupations did not exist! This was a time of rapid economic change moving from the muscle power of horses and mules to automobiles and tractors.
Of the five sons, three moved from upper East Tennessee, the historical homeland (along with Western North Carolina and Southwest Virginia for 150 years). Bill to California, Toby to Washington state and Bascom, first to Baltimore and then Kentucky. Roy stayed in East Tennessee but moved to Cleveland, near Chattanooga. While Pearl and Mayme married locally and stayed in the area, the sons were part of the Osborne diaspora. Bishop Osborne was the only son to remain in Bristol, Tennessee.
Next posting, we will explore further the lives of G. W. and Frances Wilson Osborne.


6/17/10
Reaching Out to Many Branches of the Osborne/Wilson Tree
by Glenn N. Holliman

Those of you reading this posting are descendants of Frances Wilson Osborne (1851 - 1940) and George Washington Osborne, Jr. (1846 - 1927). The ancestors of this couple braved the North Atlantic to come to the New World. Some of these persons, our great grandparents, uncles and aunts, became the most famous frontier men and women in American history. Many were pioneers who fought Native Americans, later the British and Tories, and finally each other in a Civil War that took the lives of many of our direct ancestors.

The descendants and ancestors of this couple go by the names of Osborne, Wilson, Greer, Wilcoxson, Brown, Boone, Morris, Wright, Adema, Noeltner, Aker, Sherwood, MacKenzie, Hayes, Holliman, Stansbery, Payne, Murphy, Hensley and Jahn. No doubt more can be added.

By using this blog site articles and photos can be archived and available to all family members. Your comments, articles, family trees, corrections, photographs, diaries and old letters are most welcome. In this format I, you and loved ones can hand off our family stories to the future. I invite all to join. My email address is Glennholliman@Embarqmail.com.

Frankie Osborne, as my generation's great grandmother is known, was born deep in the Appalachian Mountains of Ashe County, North Carolina. Millard Fillmore was president of the United States when she entered this world, and Franklin D. Roosevelt when she died. She lived through and during four major wars including the one that most affected her life, the American Civil War (1861-1865).
[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TBqWPpUprPI/AAAAAAAAASA/9h_FpCquZUs/s320/G.W.+Osborne+Jr..jpg]
This triple photo display of George Washington Osborne, Jr is in an album passed down from Mayme Osborne (one of G.W.'s two daughters) to Louise Stansbery Sherwood and her sister, Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick. G.W. appears to be in his 50s which would date these pictures in the 1890s.

Frankie's father and several cousins died in that war, and her husband to be, George Washington Osborne, Jr. was wounded twice. If G.W. (as he was known) had not encountered a nasty knife thrust into his side from a Union sympathizer, he and Frankie might not have met and married. She was 14 when G.W. came to her house, deep in Wilson Cove near Trade, Tennessee, to recuperate from his injury.

Frankie nursed the 19 year old G.W., and in January 1867, when she was all of 15 1/2 years, they married. That marriage lasted until G.W.'s death in June 1927 in Bristol, Tennessee. Six sons and two daughters grew to maturity from this couple.

In our next posting, we will begin to explore the lives of G.W. and Frankie and their children.
[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/S9SPZTGcO-I/AAAAAAAAAPI/UvfmJkKQj6Q/S220/Louise,_Mayme_%26_Frances_Osborne.jpg] 
Frances Wilson Osborne with daughter, Mayme Osborne Stansbery and granddaughter Louise Stansbery
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6/30/10
The Parents of Frances Wilson Osborne
Troubled Times
by Glenn N. Holliman

Photographed below are Caroline Greer Wilson (1828 - 1911) and her husband, Isaac Wilson (1822 - 1864), the parents of Frankie Wilson Osborne. The couple married in Ashe Co., NC in 1849.
[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TClV-wbR2-I/AAAAAAAAAV0/7PniLAjdRtE/s320/Caroline+Greer+Wilson+%26+Isaac+Wilson,+Jr..jpg]Isaac Wilson was a successful trader and farmer, owning several hundred acres of timber, pasture and cultivated fields nestled along the Tennessee and North Carolina borders. The elevation of the farm is over 3,000 feet and surrounded by tall mountains. When the Civil War broke out in Ashe County, North Carolina, he sided with the South and became a lieutenant in the Confederate Army. At this writing we know little of his service record.
In the early 1860s law and order broke down in an Appalachian society where cousin fought cousin. Ironically, the Wilsons owned no slaves although Caroline was a fierce Confederate.
The disorder of the times resulted in a type of guerrilla warfare, neighbor against neighbor. On June 16, 1864, my great-great grandfather became a victim when several of his neighbors shot him from ambush in the back while he was plowing his corn field. He died within a few hours. A vicious circle of revenge began that produced additional widows. It was an ugly time, and many years were needed for passions to subside.
My great-grandmother, who was with her father when the shooting occurred, told the story to my mother, Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick, who shared it with me when I was growing up in the 1950s. Only in the first decade of the 21st century did I discover this story on the internet and the book,Neighbor to Neighbor by my great-great uncle William A. Wilson.
Isaac's wife, Caroline, was 36 years old and left with 8 children, all 14 or younger. With help from family and children, she harvested the corn crop that summer and many seasons thereafter. On several occasions in 1864 her home was invaded and ransacked by Union sympathizers. Once she encountered Federal cavalry who were ready to confiscate her horse, when a cousin in the Union patrol vouched for her. She escaped without injury and with her animal.

Obviously, a strong and vibrant woman, she lived until 1911, dying from complications of a broken hip. She and her husband are buried in Wilson Cemetery in Oscar Wilson Cove near Sutherland, North Carolina in Ashe County.
In 2009, my mother, my sister Rebecca Holliman Payne and nephew Sean Murphy visited the cemetery. At the entrance to the Cove is a general store kept by some distant cousins, the Boyds, descendants of the Wilsons. The younger Boyd told us of how Caroline hid the family pewter in a hole in the nearby creek to keep the valuables from the Union Army. Such is our family story....

Next posting, more tales of our Wilson/Osborne ancestors....
6/25/10
A Book About Our Family
[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TCVjJxfyClI/AAAAAAAAATk/OfmJiV0RMTY/s320/Neighbor+to+Neighbor+001+-+Copy+(2).jpg]by Glenn N. Holliman

In 2007, The Center for Appalachian studies at Appalachian State University in Boonesboro, North Carolina (a town named after one of our ancestors) published an 180 page book entitledNeighbor to Neighbor. The volume is about the family of Frances Wilson Osborne, my generation's great grandmother. Edited by Sandra L. Ballard and Leila E. Weinstein, most of the paper back is a memoir by my generation's great, great uncle The Rev. William A. Wilson (1861 - 1951). His photo (right) and family are on the cover.

Born in Wilson Cove, near Sutherland, Ashe County, North Carolina, William was the last of eight children born to Isaac Wilson and Caroline Greer Wilson. He was the best educated of the children, having graduated from Trinity College (now known as Duke). Raised a Southern Methodist, he was ordained a pastor in that denomination.

In 1890, he accepted a call as a missionary to Japan, and spent the next forty one years mainly in the Hiroshima district. Every ten years he was granted a paid furlough. In his first decade in Japan, he met and married Mary Amelia McClellan, another Southern Methodist missionary. They were to have four children.

In the work Neighbor to Neighbor, Will shares his memories of growing up in the Western North Carolina mountains near Boone, NC to the south east, and Mountain City, Tennessee to the west. He collected stories and tales from his mother and siblings, and in his old age gathered them up in a memoir that remained unpublished in book format until recently.

Of particular interest is the story of the 'bush whacking' and murder of my generation's great, great grand father, Confederate Lt. Isaac Wilson in June 1864 while he was plowing his corn. My generation's great grandmother, Frankie Wilson Osborne, was with him when bullets fired from ambush took his life. Great great grandfather Isaac is buried in the Wilson Cemetery in Oscar Wilson Cove. His son, the Rev. William A. Wilson, the author of the poignant memoir, lies near him.

Neighbor to Neighbor can be ordered from the Appalachian State University bookshop. If they are out of the work, please contact Sandra Ballard, editor of the Appalachian Journal. The volume contains several photographs of Frankie Wilson Osborne and information on both her and G.W. Osborne, Jr., her husband and my great grandfather.

Will tells a story of an America that my grandchildren would not recognize. If you want your children to understand the violence and tragedy of the Civil War, have them read this book. Our immediate ancestors lived and suffered in a manner we can scarce imagine in the 21st century.

Next post, more on our Appalachian Mountain roots....

Reaching Out to Many Branches of the Osborne/Wilson Tree
by Glenn N. Holliman

Those of you reading this posting are descendants of Frances Wilson Osborne (1851 - 1940) and George Washington Osborne, Jr. (1846 - 1927). The ancestors of this couple braved the North Atlantic to come to the New World. Some of these persons, our great grandparents, uncles and aunts, became the most famous frontier men and women in American history. Many were pioneers who fought Native Americans, later the British and Tories, and finally each other in a Civil War that took the lives of many of our direct ancestors.

The descendants and ancestors of this couple go by the names of Osborne, Wilson, Greer, Wilcoxson, Brown, Boone, Morris, Wright, Adema, Noeltner, Aker, Sherwood, MacKenzie, Hayes, Holliman, Stansbery, Payne, Murphy, Hensley and Jahn. No doubt more can be added.

By using this blog site articles and photos can be archived and available to all family members. Your comments, articles, family trees, corrections, photographs, diaries and old letters are most welcome. In this format I, you and loved ones can hand off our family stories to the future. I invite all to join. My email address is Glennholliman@Embarqmail.com.

Frankie Osborne, as my generation's great grandmother is known, was born deep in the Appalachian Mountains of Ashe County, North Carolina. Millard Fillmore was president of the United States when she entered this world, and Franklin D. Roosevelt when she died. She lived through and during four major wars including the one that most affected her life, the American Civil War (1861-1865).
[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TBqWPpUprPI/AAAAAAAAASA/9h_FpCquZUs/s320/G.W.+Osborne+Jr..jpg]
This triple photo display of George Washington Osborne, Jr is in an album passed down from Mayme Osborne (one of G.W.'s two daughters) to Louise Stansbery Sherwood and her sister, Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick. G.W. appears to be in his 50s which would date these pictures in the 1890s.

Frankie's father and several cousins died in that war, and her husband to be, George Washington Osborne, Jr. was wounded twice. If G.W. (as he was known) had not encountered a nasty knife thrust into his side from a Union sympathizer, he and Frankie might not have met and married. She was 14 when G.W. came to her house, deep in Wilson Cove near Trade, Tennessee, to recuperate from his injury.

Frankie nursed the 19 year old G.W., and in January 1867, when she was all of 15 1/2 years, they married. That marriage lasted until G.W.'s death in June 1927 in Bristol, Tennessee. Six sons and two daughters grew to maturity from this couple.

In our next posting, we will begin to explore the lives of G.W. and Frankie and their children.
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Frances Wilson Osborne with daughter, Mayme Osborne Stansbery and granddaughter Louise Stansbery Sherwood
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We Are Also Boones, Part 3
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by Glenn N.Holliman

Sources include the Boone Society web site and members;History of the Boone, Bryan and MorganFamilies by Roberta Stuart Sims,Shreveport, LA; web site - Daniel Boone, Berks County's Gift to the West; the excellent work,Boone, A Biographyby Robert Morgan; and research by Pat Hagan on the Wilcoxson family.


In 1720 Squire Boone, a son of George and Mary Mogridge Boone married Sarah Morgan. Her father was a Welsh American planter of note, one Edward Morgan, my generation's 8th great grandfather.

The family tree below is from Robert Morgan's Boone, A Biography available from Algonquin Books of Chapel Hill, 2008.

Double click to enlarge the document. This reproduction and others are intended for educational purposes only, and not for commercial gain.

[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TESavTu51oI/AAAAAAAAAhQ/T3dd0vRLDpg/s400/Daniel+Boone+Family+Tree+001.jpg]
The marriage of my 7th great grandparents took place in North Wales in Gwynned Township, where both Welsh and English Quakers had settled. Squire and Sarah first moved to a farm in Bucks County, PA, but finding the community too crowded for aBoone, Squire soon moved to what is now Berks Country, where he bought land adjoining this father, George Boone, the great grandparent who moved the family to America.

In the 1720s, Berks County was the frontier and Blue Mountains, a few miles to the north, were a wall between the Europeans and Indians. The Squire Boones built a house over a spring, as a precaution because of possible Indian attacks. Part of the building still stands and is a historical park near Reading, Pennsylvania.

The map below is from Robert Morgan's work, one of the best recent works on Daniel Boone with considerable information on my generation's 7th and 6th great grandparents. Double click the map and it should become larger. This writer lives 25 miles northwest of Harrisburg, formerly Harris's Ferry.

[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TESRtJSEFtI/AAAAAAAAAhA/Yp0tqGNTDpE/s400/Boone+in+PA+001.jpg]
Squire and Sarah had 11 children, the first being my 6th great grandmother, Sarah Boone, born 4/7/1724 in New Britain Twp., PA. She died 1815 in Madison County, Kentucky.

Sarah, my 6th great grandmother, married John Wilcoxson on May 29, 1742 in Exeter, PA. Some genealogists believe she was with child at marriage. This plus the fact John was not a Quaker led to differences between Squire Boone and his local Quaker Church, difficulties which would eventually lead to Squire leaving the Quaker congregation and, in fact, leaving Pennsylvania!

John's father is believed to be George Wilcox, who lived in Philadelphia, a weaver, who died in 1739. John's mother was Elizabeth Powell, daughter of Rowland Powell from Haverford, Chester Co. The couple married in 1718, and John was born 9/6/1720.

This posting has been full of family tree information. Next posting we will discover more about the Boone family in Pennsylvania....
POSTED BY GLENN N. HOLLIMAN AT 1:47 PM 0 COMMENTS [image: http://img2.blogblog.com/img/icon18_edit_allbkg.gif] 
[bookmark: 6085297642045413658]
We Are Also Boones, Part 2
by Glenn N. Holliman
(Adapted from a document by Roberta Stuart Sims of Shreveport, LA)

Below is the harbour of Bristol, England at low tide several hundred years ago. Three members of the Boone family, including Squire Boone, our great grandfather, sailed from Bristol, first in 1712 and other members in 1717. Ironically for this writer, another distant relative, The Rt. Rev. John Holyman, was Bishop of the Bristol Cathedral (see background) from 1554 to 1558.

[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TD4lMN2QEEI/AAAAAAAAAd4/h4cVG0vX8NU/s400/100_2873.JPG]
The Boones and thousands of others sailed to Philadelphia, a colony founded by William Penn (below) , an activist in the Society of Friends or Quakers. Penn's fair treatment of Native Americans reduced the threat of frontier warfare, and made settlement in Pennsylvania doubly attractive.

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TD5oPj0ptbI/AAAAAAAAAeA/T1CWcC3gZu8/s400/William+Penn+001.jpg]

Below the harbour at Philadelphia where the Boone family landed and settled in lands outside of the city in the 1710s. By the early 1710s, Philadelphia was the largest city in the English colonies, and would remain so for another hundred years.

[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TD5opjTO-lI/AAAAAAAAAeI/vaFGxCLe3dk/s400/Philadelphia+001.jpg]George Boone took 400 acres and built a log cabin in Olay, later to be called Exeter, PA. This great grandfather of ours died in 1744 leaving 8 children, 52 grandchildren and 10 great grandchilddren. The offspring were a blend of Engish, German, Welsh and Scotch becoming, well, Americans within a generation.

Next posting, the life of Squire Boone....
7/10/10
We Are Also Boones
By Glenn N. Holliman
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The families of G.W. Osborne and Frankie Wilson Osborne helped settle the Appalachian frontier and defeat the British Armies in the Revolutionary War. In our examination of our pioneer ancestors, I begin with one of our most famous ancestral families, the Boones. Yes, my generation's 6th great uncle was Daniel Boone himself. But let's begin the story in England where we first have information on our earlier grandparents.

In 1636, Charles I (Portrait and book right) was on the throne of England, fighting verbally and, within a decade physically, with his Parliament. England was on the edge of a civil war that would determine whether political power lay with the House of Commons or the Crown. This civil war would be important for the development of representative democracy in the American colonies as well as in England.

In that year in the southwestern part of the country, near Exeter, in a village known as Stoke Canon, one George Boone was born. His parents are unknown according to authorities at the Boone Society. George Boone earned his living as a blacksmith, and died 1696. He and his wife, Sarah Mary Oppy, are buried at St.Magdelene Parish in Stoke Canon.

They married in 1665, and the next year, 1666, a son, anotherGeorge Boone, entered the world.

[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TDKAd3jvCVI/AAAAAAAAAZE/hT29ocP9ils/s320/Oliver+Cromwell+001.jpg]

While this second George Boone grew to manhood, England suffered through a violent civil war which resulted inOliver Cromwell(portrait left)ruling England as a Commonwealth without a monarchy throughout the 1650s. With Cromwell's death, England turned again to the Stuart family and invited Charles II to the throne, although with reduced powers. No more Divine Right of Kings even with the Stuart family restoration.

So by the early 1660s, King Charles Stuart II (portrait and book below), the son of the executed Charles I, sat in London's Whitehall Palace on the throne overseeing a growing empire. Virginia, Maryland, Massachusetts, Connecticut, Rhode Island and after the Dutch wars, New York and New Jersey were New World English colonies.

[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TDKEtnOL3yI/AAAAAAAAAZk/YK1zMn931yc/s320/Charles+II+001.jpg]
One can be assured the Boones did not dress so fashionably as King Charles II (above) who was popular with the 'ladies'.

In the 1680s, this King Charles II, still paying off political debts for his restoration, deeded a huge chuck of North America to the son of one of his noble friends, William Penn. Penn belonged to a growing Christian sect, the Society of Friends or Quakers as they were called.

Our George Boone, now grown, married and with a growing family, was intrigued by the Friends, who sat patiently in informal worship waiting for an 'Inner Light' before speaking or 'quaking'. No priests or bishops were allowed within this democratic, egalitarian and pacifist denomination whose members refused to doff their hats to anyone.

George, himself a tanner and weaver, married Mary MiltonMogridge, daughter of John Mogridge and Mary Milton. Mary had been born in Bradninch, 8 miles from Exeter in 1669. They raised a large family, and one of the sons was named Squire Boone (b 1696).

George Boone was an ambitious man, and restless in Devonshire. He heard of William Penn's new and successful colony along the Delaware River, a colony where the founding city was named Philadelphia or city of brotherly love. The Quaker, with his growing family, was ready to make the dramatic move to the New World and leave behind his ancestral homeland.

Next post we learn of the trip across the North Atlantic to Pennsylvania and a new life on America's frontiers....
[bookmark: 8283455979457607888]
Photos in the Post WWII Era
by Glenn N. Holliman

Last night, July 6, Rob Adema visited Barb and me here in Newport, PA, as he was en route to business calls in Central Pennsylvania. Rob is a great great grandson of G.W. and Frankie Osborne, through their son, Bascom, a brother of my grandmother, Mayme Osborne Stansbery. Bascom is sometimes spelled with or without a 'b' on the end.

[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TDSsnehvqHI/AAAAAAAAAac/pnugXPtPM4E/s400/004.jpg]Photo above is l to r, Glenn Holliman (b 1946) and Rob Adema (b 1966) July 6, 2010 in Newport, Pennsylvania practisinggenealogy. Glass is of Coca-Cola, sort of. Photo by Barbara Holliman.

We sat up late examining documents and old photographs. In celebration of his visit, I am posting several photos we looked at closely as they reflect both his direct line and our over lapping families. I believe the 1945 photo is courtesy of Phyllis Ackers, and the 1954 picture, a family snapshot by my father.

A contemporary photo of Rob's parents, Bob and Gay, and his Aunt Peg Adema can be found on the Contributors page of this blog. August 20, Barb and I will be visiting Rob and his parents, Bob and Gay, outside of Buffalo, NY to look at more family memorabilia of when our ancestors lived in Southwest Virginia, East Tennessee and Western North Carolina.

Now the Wilson/Osborne frontier families, under many different names, are spread across the nation.
[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TDSiWXGIs4I/AAAAAAAAAaM/NSy-zhgCPHc/s400/Pearl+Wright+%26+Families+001+-+Copy.jpg]
Photo above taken approximately 1945 at the Elmer 'Flea' Akers home in Damascus, Virginia of the children and grandchildren of Bascom Wilson Osborne, one of the five son's of G.W. and Frankie Osborne. Back row, l to r - 'Flea' Akers, Doris Osborne Akers, Gladys Osborne Adema, Edith Osborne (wife of Bascom Kruger Osborne, who is kneeling). Front row, l to r - Phyllis Akers, Bobby Adema, Peg Adema, Uncle 'Bab' Bascom K. Osborne, in Navy uniform, and his daughter, 'Gini' Osborne.

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TDSiBm_zBeI/AAAAAAAAAaE/OyXeYUDQEJ0/s400/img420.jpg]Photo of Pauline Osborne Smith, daughter of Thomas 'Toby' Osborne, one of the five sons of G.W. & Frankie, in the early 1930s rowing a boat. In the photo below, she is pictured in the 1950s with her children in a visit to her first cousin, Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick.


[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TDShbJyuBbI/AAAAAAAAAZ8/sYqKQsJ4ZUk/s400/Pearl+Wright+%26+Families+001.jpg]Taken in the summer of 1954 in Johnson City, Tennesse at the home of Geraldine Stansbery and her husband, Bishop Holliman. Left to right in front of the 1948 Plymouth are: Louise Stansbery Sherwood (daughter of Mayme Osborne Stansbery), Rebecca Louise Holliman Payne, then 4 years old on her aunt's knee, and standing is one of Pauline Osborne Smith's children, name unknown.

Kneeling with his Cocker Spaniel, Sandy, is the writer, Glenn Holliman, age 7. Behind standing sans shirt is Vance R. Sherwood, Jr., also age 7, now a published clinical psychologist. The tall young man is another of Pauline's children, name unknown.

Continuing left to right are Dave Wright, husband of Pearl Osborne Wright, Geraldine (Gerry) Stansbery, sister of Louise Sherwood, Pauline Osborne Smith (whose photo above is of her rowing a boat), and Pearl Osborne Wright, who is Geraldine and Louise's aunt.

Pauline and children lived in Sumner, Washington at the time. Pearl and David Wright in Damascus, and Louise and her son, Vance, in Knoxville, Tennessee.

An aside, it was Dave Wright who in 1912 gave his mother-in-law, Frankie Osborne, her first automobile ride from Damascus to Glade Valley, Virginia and back!

More family history in the next posting....
7/1/10
We Are Also Wilsons
by Glenn N. Holliman

The father of my great grandmother, Frances Wilson Osborne, was Isaac Wilson (1822 - 1864). This note appears in Frankie's Diary, July 23, 1928 after a visit to see relatives in Ashe County, NC.

"Hiram Wilson was a son of John Wilson and John was a son of Charles; he come over in Mayflower from Irland (sp.). My father was Isaac, the son of Hiram."

Since I transcribed the above last year I have thought Frankie accurate about the four fathers. The local Watauga, NC historian John Preston Arthur stated the same in his writings and wrote that Charles Wilson immigrated from Pennsylvania to North Carolina. Another Wilson family from East Tennessee may have come over on the Mayflower but there is no evidence that our branch did so. More investigation is due this matter.


So what do we know about these forefathers of ours? Here's the timeline I have been able to put together from Internet sources and A History of Watauga County, NC, by John Preston Arthur, 1915.

[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TC0zxxIAK7I/AAAAAAAAAYE/6bGHvYXqlrs/s320/001.jpg]
These photos are found on the web site of Johnson County, Tennessee historical society. The left photo is of Isaac Wilson in his 20s in the 1840s, when photographs has just been developed. The one of the right is probably about the time he was murdered in 1864. Notice his hair style has not changed through the decades. Isaac's son, William A. Wilson, the family genealogist and memoir writer, evidently had the original and made copies for his nieces and nephews.
The web site also reveals Isaac was in Company E, 37th Regiment NC Troopers. He was home on leave when bushwhacked by his neighbors the Potters and a Tom Stout, Union sympathisers. W.A. Wilson's story of the episode can be found at the Johnson County Tennessee Genealogy Page on the Internet.
Prior to 1750 - Charles Wilson immigrates from Pennsylvania to North Carolina. We do not know his birthplace or father's name.

1750 - John Wilson was born in North Carolina, and his wife Sara, unknown last name, in 1752, also in NC.

1770 - John Wilson and Sara marry.

1780 - Charles Wilson, according to John Preston Arthur, is killed at the Battle of Guildford Court House during the Revolutionary War, fighting as an officer under General Nathaniel Greene. We have no birth date on Charles, but according to Frankie, he is the father of John Wilson. Local historian, Arthur agrees with Frankie and even argues that Charles Wilson is relative by marriage to the legendary Nathaniel Greene. This writer has researched this and doubts this proposition.

1787, On 11/2/1787 in Rowan, NC, Hiram Wilson is borne, Frankie's grandfather. His wife, Nancy Smith was born about 1786, also in Rowan.

1799 - John Wilson dies.

1812 - Hiram and Nancy Smith Wilson marry on 9/12/1812 in Rowan, NC and settle at Cove Creek in Ashe County, NC in 1815.

1822 - Frankie's father, Isaac Wilson is born 12/16/1822. James Madison is president of the U.S. at this time.

1828 - Caroline Nancy Greer is born 12/10/1828 in Ashe Co.

1849 - Caroline and Isaac Wilson marry 3/25/1849.

1851 - 6/20/1851, Frances Wilson (Osborne) born in Ashe Co., NC.

1864 - 6/17/1864, Isaac Wilson shot from ambush. Frankie's father and two uncles die in Civil War. Hiram is present at his son's funeral and provides assistance to the now widowed Caroline Greer Wilson.
One of the assassins, Thomas Stout, was captured and held overnight in Cove Creek (Ashe County, NC) at Hiram's farm. The next day several relatives and friends recovered Tom Stout and started to Camp Vance in Morgantown, NC with him. Tom Stout never arrived. Several months later a noose was found on Rich Mountain, and after examination the remains of Stout were discovered in a shallow grave. His widow retrieved what was left of Stout and buried him in her family cemetery.
1867 - Frankie marries G.W. Osborne. (These are my generations' great grandparents.)
1879 - Hiram Wilson dies in Watauga Co., NC.

1911 - 8/9/1911, Caroline Greer Wilson dies and is buried in Wilson Cemetery, Oscar Cove, NC.
Next posting, we examine another branch of our Osborne/Wilson family tree....
8/31/10
More Adema and Stansbery Photographs, No. 5
by Glenn N. Holliman

More Photographs from the Collection of Bob Adema

Saying Good Bye at the Wright's home in Damascus, Virginia
[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TH0ywC1ajQI/AAAAAAAABEI/JZyQw6tBX-Q/s400/078+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy.jpg]

Okay, I need some help with this one. I failed to record the names of everyone. The photo above were taken in 1959. Aunt Pearl and Uncle Dave are present. Can the rest be identified? I will try: far right is my Great Aunt Pearl. Moving right to the left is Gladys and Howard Adema, right? Then Doris Akers but who is the young woman behind her? Then my Great Uncle Dave and moving far left is Elmer (Flea) Akers? How close did I come?

Note: Phyllis wrote and believes man between Doris and Gladys is a brother of Dave, named Lawrence. Is the woman behind Doris and Uncle Dave a wife or daughter of 'Lawrence'? Sept. 2, 2010


The Sons of Leroy Osborne - 1910s?

The second child born to live to maturity of G.W. and Frankie Wilson Osborne was Leroy Milburn Osborne (2/17/1879 - ?). He lived in Cleveland, Tennessee in 1936 and was married to LenaHolsclaw (9/17/1879 - ?). They had three boys, seen below: Ralph Summers, Albert Leslie and Robert Lafayette Osborne. A girl was named Lucille Osborne. I do not know who is whom below. These are first cousins of my mother, Geraldine Stansbery HollimanFeick. I believe Leroy was a farmer, although his address was 1016 16th Street, Cleveland, TN.

Two brothers married Holtsclaws. Toby married Alta Holsclaw(perhaps spelled Holtzclaw or Holtsclaw). I believe they may have married these girls when the family lived in Ashe Co., NC or shortly thereafter. More research needed, but I assume they were sisters. I love the knickers on the two young cousins.

[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TH1OM4J300I/AAAAAAAABEQ/ZXM1AP2O7iE/s400/078+-+Copy+-+Copy.jpg]
More Soon....
POSTED BY GLENN N. HOLLIMAN AT 12:37 PM 0 COMMENTS [image: http://img2.blogblog.com/img/icon18_edit_allbkg.gif] 
8/29/10
More Adema and Stansbery Photographs, No. 4
by Glenn N. Holliman
Our review of the photos of Bob Adema continues.

1930

Unless I am mistaken, this is my uncle Charles S. Stansbery, Jr, age approximately 12, with his grandmother, Frances Wilson Osborne. Charles would join the Army Air Corp in 1937 and have a long career before retiring in the early 1960s. He married Anne Smith of Philadelphia in 1943 after having known her only five weeks. Their life long love affair began at the Stage Door Canteen when he was home on leave (his mother, Mayme Osborne and sisters, Louise Stansbery Sherwood and Geraldine Stansbery HollimanFeick, my mother, were living in Pennsylvania at the time). Frankie, the inspiration of this on going blog, seemed to be dressed always in a black dress. She would have been almost 80 years old in this photograph. I believe the picture was taken in Bristol, Tennessee, Mayme's home from 1919 to 1941.

[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/THlsqarI_AI/AAAAAAAABDA/s2KEcwazAhg/s400/077.jpg]

1930s

Below is a photo of Pearl Osborne Wright, my great aunt, and the wife of Dave Wright. They met in Damascus, Virginia and married in Afton, Tennessee in 1912. In 1922, after the death of Dora Kruger Osborne, Pearl and Dave took in and raised Bascomb K., Gladys and Doris Osborne.

[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/THlu9cL-kpI/AAAAAAAABDI/sgjuDdBnDBA/s400/080+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy.jpg]
1930s

Below, standing on the left of this photo is Howard Adema of Buffalo, New York, who married Gladys Osborne. Howard was helping direct a Civilian Conservation Camp (CCC), a New Deal agency attempting to combat the Depression by employing young men to work in America's forests to develop parks and national forests. The man of the right was his boss. While stationed in Virginia working for the CCC, he met Gladys and the southern girl moved north when they married. Their children are Peggy, Robert and Alan.
[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/THlv8a5Y9WI/AAAAAAAABDQ/PUlkEFTAKAo/s400/078+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy.jpg]
More photos of relatives soon....
POSTED BY GLENN N. HOLLIMAN AT 4:06 AM 0 COMMENTS [image: http://img2.blogblog.com/img/icon18_edit_allbkg.gif] 
8/28/10
More Adema and Stansbery Photographs, No. 3
by Glenn N. Holliman

I continue to post photos provided by Bob Adema and his family albums.


1938

If you will revisit the previous post, you will note this setting and persons are almost identical as when just the female cousins were snapped. This picture is of the ladies with spouses. My mother, Geraldine Stansbery, Mayme Osborne's second daughter, is far left and at age 15, unmarried, but with a brilliant smile!

Moving to the right from mother is Frazier King, the husband of Louise Stansbery, my aunt who has her arm in his. This marriage was ill-fated and dissolved after only a year and half. Frazier's family owned King's Department Stores in East Tennessee.

To the right of Louise is Howard Adema and his wife, Gladys, the parents of Bob Adema and Peg Adema Noeltner. Elmer 'Flea' Akers stands next to his wife, Doris. 'Flea' and Doris had two children, Phyllis and David.

[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/THPC6GQ8l_I/AAAAAAAAA_o/zcRqpkDYzJA/s400/077+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy.jpg]
This series of photos was taken in front of David and Pearl Osborne Wright's home in Damascus.


1930s

Below is a cute photo of 'Flea' and Doris Osborne Akers in southwest Virginia. So formal in those days with Flea wearing a tie and Doris in high heels and yet curled up on the grass in front of a cabin. Doris is my mother and Aunt Louise's first cousin by Bascomb Osborne. Flea and Doris are the parents of Phyllis and David Akers. Phyllis has been sharing photos and information also with me on our family. 

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/THhuR4XKX1I/AAAAAAAABC4/PTtLEa82q0o/s400/084+-+Copy.jpg]
More soon from the collection by Bob Adema, from photos saved by his father Howard Adema (photo above).
POSTED BY GLENN N. HOLLIMAN AT 6:00 AM 0 COMMENTS [image: http://img2.blogblog.com/img/icon18_edit_allbkg.gif] 
LABELS: DAMASCUS, DORIS OSBORNE AKERS, FLEA AKERS, FRAZIER KING,GERALDINE STANSBERY HOLLIMAN FEICK, GLADYS OSBORNE ADEMA, HOWARD ADEMA, LOUISE STANSBERY SHERWOOD
8/24/10
More Adema and Stansbery Photos, No. 2
[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/THMUoAptTHI/AAAAAAAAA-Q/o9OGw35olHI/s400/080+-+Copy.jpg]
by Glenn N. Holliman

1920s

This is Bascomb Osborne, my great uncle (1887 - 1970) with his two daughters, Doris and Gladys. I love the straw hat of the times and the sheep. Where was this taken? Damascus, Virginia after his wife, Dora Kruger Osborne, died in 1922?

1938

Years have passed and Gladys and Doris have grown up and married. Left to right in Damascus, Virginia are Geraldine, age 15, my mother; Louise, my aunt, Gladys and Doris. My mother was age 15, and she was striking a saucy poise that day!

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/THMVNNmeu6I/AAAAAAAAA-Y/t0p53XdxF7Y/s400/076+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy.jpg]
More tomorrow.....
8/23/10
Photos Rediscovered and Shared, No. 1

by Glenn N. Holliman


Photos from Adema and Stansbery Albums

August 21, 2010 I visited at Port Colborne, Ontario my second cousins, Bob and Gayle Adema and their son, Rob. Rob, who lives in Buffalo, NY had visited my Newport, PA last month. Bob and Gayle, my daughter Grace and I had visited last March in Florida along with Bob's sister, Peggy Noeltner.

We discovered new and old photos, some they had, some I had from my mother, Geraldine Stansbery and her sister, the late Louise Stansbery Sherwood.

Bob and I are of the same generation, and G.W. and Frankie Osborne are our great grandparents. Bob's grandfather is Bascomb Osborne and my grandmother is his sister, Mayme Obsorne. Go to the Family Lineage page to review the family tree.

Here are some new and shared photos, and I will stay with them for several weeks. For those of you just dying to know more about the Wilcoxson family, you must be patient!

Below are identical photos of Doris and Gladys Osborne, 1921. The one on the left was in the Adema album and is labeled. The one on the right was in the Stansbery album. After 90 years these pictures are joined again. Doris and Gladys were the daughters of Bascomb and Dora Kruger Osborne. Tragically Dora died of a weakened heart at age 32 in 1922, and because Bascomb was unable to care for them property, the two girls and their brother, Bascomb K., went to live with Pearl Osborne Wright and her husband Dave in Damascus, Virginia, outside of Bristol.


Gladys is the mother of Bob, Alan and Peg Adema Noeltner. Doris is the mother of Phyllis and Dave Akers.
Both these girls are first cousins of my mother, Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick.

[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/THLn_krufaI/AAAAAAAAA94/DY-0JEA4rMY/s400/082+-+Copy.jpg]

[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/THLojRu7RmI/AAAAAAAAA-I/pF_X6rktfMo/s400/l.+to+r.+-+Gladys+and+Doris.jpg]



My thanks to Bob and Gayle for their kind lunch and hospitality and to their son, Rob, who scanned all these photos. Since 1940, the Adema family has enjoyed a cottage on the north shore of Lake Erie, experiencing soft, cool summer breezes and gazing at water and passing lake freighters.


More photos later this week!

8/16/10
We Are Also Wilcoxsons - Part I
by Glenn N. Holliman


From Nottingshire to North Carolina...
Sources for this posting from Pat Hagan, Wilcoxson scholar and the Willcockson Genealogy Library

One of my generation's 8th great grandfather was John Wilcoxson, born about 1666 in Cossal, Nottingshire, England. We do not have the name of his wife, but on March 10, 1691/92 when Pennsylvania was only a decade old, one George Wilcoxson, my generations' 7th great grandfather, was born. The home was in Haverford, Pennsylvania. (see maps below)

(If my math is correct one has the potential for 512 8th great grandparents, or 256 8th grand fathers. So above is one of 256!)

Below is a map of parts of Derbyshire and Nottingshire, England. The yellowed area is Cossal, now just off the M 1, the major north - south artery for automobile and lorry traffic from London to Scotland. The fabled Sherwood Forest (now a feeble recreation of the medieval woodlands of Robin Hood) is a few miles to the northeast of this map. London is approximately 90 miles to the south of this map.

Breadsall, the red circled area, is the location of a fabulous Marriott Hotel located in an old country house and priory. Breadsall Priory Hotel is highly recommended as Barb and I have stayed there numerous times. Ironically I had no idea we were only a few miles from the home of my generation's 8th great grandfather.

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TGa-ZFqH2FI/AAAAAAAAA1o/MkSaSOzURns/s400/Nottingham+001.jpg]

John Wilcoxson must have been a Quaker because George would marry one Elizabeth Powell, my generation's 7th great grandmother in a Quaker ceremony April 15, 1719. Elizabeth was the daughter of Rowland Powell (another 8th great grandfather!) of Haverford Township in Chester, County.

By 1730 and perhaps earlier, George and Elizabeth Wilcoxson settled in Uwchlan, PA, a Welsh settlement, now located on Highway 100, just off the Pennsylvania Turnpike. George worked as a weaver and a farmer. Eventually, the family owned 95 acres.

Unfortunately, death came early to both George and Elizabeth (1739 and 1740). At least four children survived, Mary, age 5, who was taken in by a friend, and two sons, John and George, who went to live with Squire Boone and his wife Sarah Morgan Boone. Both George and Squire were weavers, and lived 15 to 20 miles apart. Another son, Isaac Wilcoxson (1724 - 1766) followed the extended family to North Carolina, as he is buried in the same cemetery as Squire and Sarah Morgan Boone.

Uwchland (spelled by the U.S. Post Office as Uwchland) means in Welch - upland. Ironically, for a Welsh Quaker settlement, the two places of worship in the township today are Jewish and Roman Catholic.

Below circled and yellowed are three locations of the Wilcoxson family in Pennsylvania from 1691 to 1750. The black circle, far right, is Haverford, now one of the most wealthy townships in America. Founded in 1691, the word in Welsh is reported to mean 'goat crossing'. Double click on the map and it will enlarge.
[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TGbdJdHZRtI/AAAAAAAAA1w/CnUh0UJS0dg/s400/haverford+Map+001.jpg]

The center black circle is Uwchlan, the 95 acre farm of George and Elizabeth Powell Wilcoxson. The top left circle is the Squire Boone homestead. In the late 1600s and early 1700s, this area of Pennsylvania was very much the frontier line.

As we know, the Boones and Wilcoxsons will move together to North Carolina. In our next posting, we will follow the lives of John and Sarah Boone Wilcoxson, my generations 6th great grandparents....

8/10/10
We Are Also Boones, Part 5
by Glenn N. Holliman
The Boones and Wilcoxsons Locate to North Carolina

By the late 1740s, Squire Boone had had enough of the Quaker Church disciplining him for this children marrying outside of the faith. In 1750 in somewhat of a huff, he sold his land, burned some of his belongings, and with children and in-laws, moved down the Shenandoah Valley, first stopping in Virginia and eventually settling in the Yadkin Valley in North Carolina. Although Cherokee wars sent the family back to Culpepper, Virginia in the 1750s, the families eventually settled in the rolling hills of Rowan County.[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TFcQzomPzqI/AAAAAAAAArQ/9x6_LPedFFI/s400/Boone+in+NC.jpg]
Map from Boone, A Biography by Robert Morgan. For educational purposes only and not for commercial gain.

For Squire and his wife, Sarah, this was their last stop. Squire, who was born in Devonshire, England in 1696, died in 1765. Lying next to him is Sarah Morgan Boone, who died in 1777. This monument is to my generation's 7th great grandparents.
[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TFcSv6MNKuI/AAAAAAAAArY/pyBd1tAPhr8/s400/Joppa+Cemetery+001.jpg]Photo from In the Footsteps of Daniel Boone, for educational purposes only.


The cemetery is located just one mile off I -40 near Mocksville, North Carolina. What was once the wild frontier is now Interstate Exit 170 half way between Winston-Salem and Statesville. The graveyard is 1/2 mile northwest of Mocksville on US 601.

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TFcgdAAOuiI/AAAAAAAAArg/aNGgJyfWw00/s400/Yadkin+Map+001.jpg]Double click to enlarge the map.

Next posting, the adventures of the Wilcoxson's in North Carolina and Kentucky....
POSTED BY GLENN N. HOLLIMAN AT 2:37 AM 0 COMMENTS [image: http://img2.blogblog.com/img/icon18_edit_allbkg.gif] 
8/2/10
We Are Also Boones, Part 4
by Glenn N. Holliman
(Source for this posting is largely from In the Footsteps of Daniel Boone by Randell Jones. Photos taken from the work published by John J. Blair, Winston-Salem, NC. There is no commercial intent to using these photos; education for family only.)

In our last posting, George Boone moved his family fromDevonshire, England to Philadelphia. His many children began to marry, including Squire Boone to Sarah Morgan. This couple had 11 children, the first being Sarah Boone, who in 1743 married outside the Quaker faith to John Wilcoxson. Sarah and John were my generation's 6th great grandparents.


[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TEXhvaIdOfI/AAAAAAAAAiI/f1Leh9k7_tE/s400/Exeter+Meeting+House+001.jpg]
George Boone (my generation's 8th great grandfather) donated land in Oley, Pennsylvania for a log meeting house for the Society of Friends (Quakers) (photo left). Later, Oley was divided into two parts, with the southern portion named Exeter, after the English town where George Boone had sold woven goods a quarter century earlier.


The historian Randell Jones notes the stone in front of the 1759 Quaker Meeting House commemorates both the Boone and Lincoln families. A niece of Squire Boone married one Abraham Lincoln, the grandfather of the future president. This Lincoln would help Daniel Boone blaze the Cumberland Gap Trail. If my analysis is correct then our family (all those of you reading this) share common great grandparents with the Great Emancipator. How about that?! I suppose such makes Ole Abe a distant cousin.

Squire Boone's cabin was only 1.5 miles from the Meeting House about 10 miles east of Reading, Pennsylvania in the Birdsboroarea. Below is the stone cellar above which my 7th great grandfather built a log house for his family.


[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TEXjochMvVI/AAAAAAAAAiQ/EmpfoypjByk/s400/Daniel+Boone+home+001.jpg]
The Boone Homestead of our 7th and 6th great grandparents is operated by the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission. The site is open to visitors and details can be found at http://www.danielboonehomestead.org/. Another excellent site to review our genealogy is http://www.boonesociety.org/. I recently joined the Boone Society and have received much family information from a well-researched group of distant cousins. I recommend the Boone Society for their depth of knowledge and their careful research (and they are nice people).

Next posting, the family leaves the Quaker faith and Pennsylvania....
BLOG ARCHIVE9/27/10
We Are Also Wilcoxsons - Part III
by Glenn N. Holliman

The Wilcoxsons and Boones, 18th Century Pioneers in Central North Carolina and Kentucky
Sources include www.planetmurphy.org; Ft. Boonesborough web site; Hazel A. Spraker's 1923 biography of the Boone Family and Robert Morgan's Boone, a Biography, 2008.

John and Sarah Boone Wilcoxson prospered in their new home in central North Carolina north of Salisbury. In both 1765 and 1772, John assisted in constructing or overseeing road development along the Yadkin River. Numerous children were born, several of whom would help to open Kentucky and fight Shawnee Indians and the British in coming decades.

The Yadkin Valley, once filled with game and hostile Native Americas, had tamed somewhat by the 1770s. Some family members were growing restless, attracted by possibilities of inexpensive land over the mountains. John and Sarah faced some choices in the late 1770s.

Sarah's brother, Daniel, other relatives and her own grown children, were caught up in the opening of Kentucky. A study of the record indicates John was perplexed whether to stay in what was now settled country, Yadkin Valley or move to the cheap lands of Kentucky. They were not longer a young couple, and their children were growing up, starting families of their own.

[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TJpqE-C-g8I/AAAAAAAABS0/7dtDRuiq5XU/s400/boone+gap.jpg]This is a famous and romantic version of Daniel Boone, his wife, Rebecca Bryan Boone, and other members of our extended family venturing through Cumberland Gap en route in the late 1770s to the Dark and Bloody Ground of Kentucky. Kentucky was Shawnee hunting territory, and the Native Americans fought voraciously to keep the American settlers out. For a few years, until ultimately the Shawnee were defeated, the land was filled with anguish and death. An Eastern writer wrote up the deeds of one of the early explorers, settler, Indian fighter and long hunter, my sixth great uncle Daniel Boone, and he became one of the first America celebrities. His fame continues to this day.


Sometime around 1777 or 78, John and Sarah did move to Ft. Boonesborough, Kentucky. There is a monument today at Ft. Booneborough with the names of John and Sarah engraved, along with other Boone family members. See below.

An unknown descendant of Kentucky pioneers stand adjacent to the Boonesborough monument where John, Sarah, many Boones and other family member names are embedded.

[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TJZOww95uZI/AAAAAAAABRM/xIa3pVgt2v8/s400/FortBoonesboroughmonumentsprint+(1).jpg]
John and Sarah may have been at the famous September 1778 Battle of Ft. Boonesborough when 440 Shawnee Indians and 12 French-Canadians besieged the fort. Certainly other family members were. Sixty settlers, led by Daniel Boone, held off the attack for days, before Chief Blackfish broke off the fight. Below, a 1901 sketch of Ft. Boonesborough, now a state historical park.

[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TJZS8EnJ9KI/AAAAAAAABRc/MMTde5JO-ok/s400/fortboonesketch.jpg]
More on our Famous Frontier Family in the next post....

9/20/10
We Are Also Wilcoxsons - Part II
by Glenn N. Holliman

Our Family Gathers in North Carolina
(Sources include Boone Family History and Genealogy at www.family-genealogy-online.com/little/boone.html, The Willcockson Society, the Salisbury, NC Enterprise-Recorder, July 24, 1975 and Salisbury Sunday Post, August 3, 1975)


Beginning in the 1750s, a migration, generally of Scotch-Irish, but also Welsh and early English colonists, began moving to the Cherokee Indian hunting grounds of Southwest Virginia and Western North Carolina. The colonists, generally second and third generations in America, thirst for land, and a lot of it, resulted in the ancestral families of our present generation moving from Pennsylvania and Maryland, south often through the Shenandoah Valley on the Great Wagon Road to the contested frontier.

The Wilcoxson's, my generation's 6th great grandparents, moving with the Boone family, acquired a land grant near the presentCooleemee, Davie County, NC. , formerly Rowan Co. There John and Sarah Boone Wilcoxson built a log cabin and continued to raise their expanding family on what became 800 acres of land. At the 'Shoals" where Cooleemee is now located (see below, center left), the Yadkin River could be forded for travel into Salisbury, NC. The original log cabins of the extended Boone family were built along this road.


[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TGlKuxaI2aI/AAAAAAAAA6o/HJhzKNJhbMA/s400/Squire+Boon+Cemetery.jpg]
On a continuous tract of land over four miles in length, the families built cabins, and it is reasonable to assume they helped one another in the construction. John and Sarah built one of the better and larger houses between 1752 and 1756, using logs as large as 18 inches by 34 feet. This home, greatly enlarged and modernized, stands today, 225 years later!

[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TGlVVEal4JI/AAAAAAAAA6w/WS52mA7Ztps/s400/Wilcoxson+Cabin+001.jpg]
It consisted of one large 17 by 33 ft room where the family cooked, ate and adults slept. The floors were 3 inches thick of wood. The children, eventually there were 11, perhaps more, slept in a big attic room, which also provided protection in case of Indian attack.

We know that in this frontier the Quaker and Anglican Churches were left behind, and the families embraced what became the Boone's Baptist Church near their home. John and Sarah appear on the tax list in 1759. In 1778 the family moved to Booneborough, Kentucky, but after a year on the very dangerous frontier opened by Sarah's brother, Daniel, the Wilcoxsons returned to the log cabin. While in Kentucky, the Wilcoxsons were part of the pioneer party that defended the various settlements. At Boonesboroughtoday, the Wilcoxson names are listed along with the Boones.

The Wilcoxson's sold the house in 1787 to a Abraham Welty. The 1790 census of Yadkin Valley, Rowan Co., NC lists John and some of his family living on Bear Creek. The Mylar family married into the Wilcoxson and Boone families, and their web site lists much of this material (http://www.familytreecircles.com/journal_7466.html). One of John and Sarah's son-in-laws would be killed during an Indian attack in 1788.

Next posting, some more Wilcoxson frontier events....
9/14/10
More Adema and Stansbery Photographs, No. 9
by Glenn N. Holliman
2010

Rob Adema took this photograph of his parents, Gay and BobAdema along with yours truly (far left) at their summer home over looking Lake Erie. We are overlooking Cedar Bay at Pt. Claborne, Ontario. Bob's parents, Howard and Gladys Osborne Adema, purchased the home in 1940. We spent much of our day together, not just eating the Western New York favorite - beef on wick - but reviewing old photographs, the ones I have been running the past month.

[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TIQI-_cRrKI/AAAAAAAABLU/3rw3whDa_5Q/s400/Ademas+August+2010.jpg]Photo by Rob Adema

1940s

Is Bob in the photo below? Back row left to right are Flea and Doris Osborne Akers, then Gladys Osborne Adema, the girl is Virginia Osborne, the daughter of Bascomb K. Osborne (in the Navy uniform) and his wife Edith, far right, back row. Now I am on uneasy ground. I think front row looking down is Phyllis Akers, then Bob Adema (?), Bascomb K. and then Peg Adema Noeltner.
Where and when was this taken? Gladys and Doris are my mother's first cousins, all having grown up in the same area of southwest Virginia and upper East Tennessee in the 1920s and 30's.

[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TIQKaEcKXHI/AAAAAAAABLc/L4K3WaTO_CM/s400/Pearl+Wright+%26+Families+001+-+Copy.jpg]
From Phylllis Akers, Sept. 14, 2010: The picture of all of us was taken in front of Mom and Dad's house in Damascus. The people are: Back row, l to r - Flea Akers and Doris Osborne Akers, Gladys Osborne Adema, Edith Osborne - Bascom's (Bab) wife. 2nd row: Phyllis Akers, Bob Adema, & Peg Adema. Front, kneeling: Bascom (Bab) Osborne with daughter Gini. Don't know the date of that but looks like I'm sad that everyone is leaving.
Next posting, back to frontier days in Western North Carolina....
9/8/10
More Adema and Stansbery Photographs, No. 8
by Glenn N. Holliman

More Photos from the Collection of Bob Adema

1950
This is a photo of my Great Aunt Pearl and Great Uncle Dave Wright at their home in Damascus, Virginia. Dave, an electrician and in charge of the local electric service company, died in 1962. Pearl was born in Mast, North Carolina and died in Damascus in 1980 at the age of 90. They had no children themselves but raisedBascomb K., Gladys and Doris Osborne after their mother died in 1922. Can anyone identify the little boy on Dave's right?

Phyllis Akers wrote on September 9, 2010 that the boy is her brother, David Akers and continued: "Notice how Aunt Pearl is dressed up. I remember her always wearing a dress and stockings and heels even when she was carrying a load of sheets upstairs to make a bed. They had a bedroom on the main floor but they had boarders upstairs for many years. She must have washed, ironed and carried sheets up and down stairs way up into her 60's. I remember Mom saying that when she was sick, you could always tell when she was feeling better because she put her earrings on. Uncle Dave died just after I was married. Probably from another stroke. He was the first person I saw putting tons of salt on his food even before he tasted it. I remember Duane and I going to see him in the hospital."

David Akers sent the following on Sept. 9, 2010: Hi Glenn,
Thanks for the update. I have not been there yet but will check it out
after while. I have some old pictures of Uncle Dave at the control center
of the hydro-electric dam in Damascus if you would be interested. He was
the first lamp-lighter in Damascus and then moved into the first operator
position for the dam. He and the dam were later bought out by the
Appalachian Power Co. where I later worked for 30 yrs. and then retired. 

[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TIKtxfAYSZI/AAAAAAAABJw/cKGGGcLNsXA/s400/082+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy+(2).jpg]

Below is Uncle Dave Wright at his kitchen table repairing radios which he did after retirement. This is a professional photograph taken in 1959.
[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TIKv2iTcneI/AAAAAAAABJ8/GAEOh6AHrK4/s400/085.jpg]

More soon....
9/4/10
More Adema and Stansbery Photographs, No. 7
by Glenn N. Holliman

More Photos from Bob Adema

1930s
Below is a photograph of my mother's first cousin, Gladys Osborne Adema, probably while on an outing in the Virginia mountains.

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TH_Lo0132wI/AAAAAAAABGo/JtnSV4AcRHE/s400/077+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy.jpg]


1995 in Ohio Cousins Revisit
Below, left to right are Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick (Gladys's first cousin), Bob Adema, a son of Gladys, Gladys and The Rev. Don Feick, my Mother's husband. Fr. Don, an Episcopal priest, had a parish in Ohio, and while there he and Gerry visited family she had not seen in over a generation. Bob is the cousin who has been sharing the family photos the past several postings.
[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TH_MK0s3SXI/AAAAAAAABGw/xxyjvnAJW10/s400/076+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy.jpg]


More soon of the family of Frances Wilson Osborne (1851 - 1940)
POSTED BY GLENN N. HOLLIMAN AT 12:06 AM 0 COMMENTS [image: http://img2.blogblog.com/img/icon18_edit_allbkg.gif] 
LABELS: DON FEICK, GERALDINE STANSBERY HOLLIMAN FEICK, GLADYS OSBORNE ADEMA, TOM ADEMA
9/2/10
More Adema and Stansbery Photographs, No. 6
by Glenn N. Holliman

More photos from the collection of cousin Bob Adema.

1940s?

Left is my Mother's first cousin, Bascomb K. Osborne and on far right is his father, my Great Uncle Bascomb Osborne. Bascomb'ssecond wife, Ada stands behind Bascomb K's daugher, Virginia (Ginnie). The photo was probably taken in the late 1940s or early 1950s at the Osborne home in Owenboro, Kentucky. Bascomb was a Ford manager. The younger Bascomb, Uncle Bab as he was known to his nieces and nephews, had an outstanding career in the U.S. Navy. All in this photo are now deceased.
[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TH6fedb5q5I/AAAAAAAABFY/4AEPpvJOOmI/s400/080+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy+-+Copy.jpg]


1930s

Below is another photo of Frances Wilson Osborne, my generation's Great Grandmother. As usual she is dressed in black. Whose front porch is this? I assume this was made in either Damascus, Virginia or Bristol, Tennessee. She often wears a wide black ribbon around her waist in photographs.
[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TH6g0BycijI/AAAAAAAABFg/6g1a288HANw/s400/077+-+Copy+-+Copy.jpg]

More soon....
 
10/30/10
When We Were Greers, Part III
by Glenn N. Holliman


James Greer Comes to Maryland
(For the Greer lineage from Scotland to the G.W. and Frances Wilson Osborne generation in Western North Carolina and Tennessee, please go to the Lineage page of this blog; scroll to the bottom of the page. The material for this posting comes from a history of Herford County, Maryland and many Joppa, Maryland historical web sites.)

Born in 1627, my generation's 8th great grandfatherimmigrated from Dumfries, Scotland in 1677, old for a crossing and a new start in life. However, he must have been a young fifty. He married teenager Ann Taylor, born 1660, according to some sources, in Baltimore County, Maryland. Ann was the daughter of large land owner parents, Arthur and Margaret Taylor. Both the Taylors and Greers had land along the Gunpowder River inJoppa, Maryland. (More work remains to discover the Taylor family line.)

[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TMiMF_PxnbI/AAAAAAAABcA/VB7KXf_boPg/s400/2010+Maryland+Map+001+(2).jpg]

In the map above of modern Maryland, one will find Joppatown, a new town built in the 1960s on the site of old Joppa.Joppatown (lower middle - left on the map) is just off the busy railway and motor vehicle corridors from Washington, D.C. to Boston. Gunpowder State Park is in light green just south ofJoppatown. In the early 1700s, a common phrase in Maryland was that 'all roads lead to Joppa'.

Joppa was located on the Gunpowder River which flowed into the Chesapeake Bay. In the early 1700s Joppa was one of America's main ports as Baltimore City had not yet been founded. Planters like the Greers and Taylors grew tobacco and loaded it on the many wharves at Joppa.
As the back country of Pennsylvania developed in the first half of the 18th century (note map above), German and Scotch-Irish farmers 'rolled' their hogsheads of tobacco to Joppa and sent their crops to England. Joppa prospered but her days of commercial glory were numbered.



[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TMiP6wcV9lI/AAAAAAAABcQ/J0QidU0-D5Q/s400/2010+Joppa+historical+sign+on+site%3B+now+a+1960s+neighborhood.jpg]
The historical marker above stands on the site of St. John's Episcopal Parish, now the site of Church of the Resurrection (Episcopal). The neighborhood was a model community built in the 1960s on the site of Joppa, which by the early 1800s had become a ghost town. Once Joppa was a leading North American port until the Gunpowder River silted up and year by year the number of ocean going vessels declined (along with the fortunes of the Greer families!)

More in the next posting on the Greers, other ancestral families of ours, and this
near-forgotten piece of American history.
10/22/10
When We Were Greers, Part II
by Glenn N. Holliman

Actually, We Were MacGregors, Griers, Griersons and More!

Scotland today is part of the United Kingdom, which includes Northern Ireland, Wales and England. The rising of King James VI of Scotland in 1603 to the throne of England bound the two nations together after centuries of strife and warfare. Scotland had been determined to maintain its independence, and England wanted no restless and fierce neighbor at its northern door.

Our Greer ancestry in Scotland begins officially with Hugh II, a King of Dalriada, a long disappeared chiefdom, probably in the lowlands not far from the Roman Emperor Hadrian's wall. In the 7th century A.D., England was being invaded by Angles, Saxons and Jutes, and were in no condition to threaten their northern Celtic kin known as Picts.

This was 33 generations ago, and probably half of North America, Australia and the U.K. are descended from this line of Scots. An interesting one was Hugh IV or 'the Poisonous', who died in 822. Quaint name. The centuries rolled by and the MacGregor named emerged, and they were 'Sirs' and 'Thanes'. They seemed to rule and be ruled in Dumfrieshire, a county across the Solway Firth from Carlisle in Scotland.

The main market town was Dumfries, still a minor port city leading to the Irish Sea. Besides the home of some of our ancestors, Robert Burns, the great Scottish poet, and James Barrie, the writer of Peter Pan, hailed from the community. Our last Scottish ancestor was Sir James Grier Sr, b. 1604 at Cape Noch, Dumfrieshire. He married in 1626 to a Mary Brown, daughter of a Presbyterian pastor (She was from Glencairn). They would be my generation's 9th great grandparents. James Sr. died in 1666 at the place of his birth, Cape Noch, Thornhill, north of Dumfries.


[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TLTC3vz_QEI/AAAAAAAABXk/w1441kVTZMs/s400/Dumfries,+Scotland.jpg]Above to the right, the Dumfries and Galloway Family History near the town centre.

The couple did have a child named James Greer in 1627, born also at Cape Noch. This James is the first American, having caught a ship in 1677. He sailed to the Chesapeake Bay, Maryland and started a new life in the new world at the rather ancient age of fifty.

Below the Dumfries and Galloway Archives is located in the Burns House (yes, Robert) on Burns Street. Here are then two places to check out for family history on your next trip to Scotland. Easier yet, check them out on the Internet.

[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TLTDO6lNnNI/AAAAAAAABXs/WhqxP69p2Rk/s400/Burns+Centre.jpg]
The Internet is swarming with Greer and McGregor sites. Two to check would be the Greer Genealogical Website and the Greer Family of Watagua County, North Carolina. Just Google Greer and you will be busy for days. I have posted our Greer lineage on the page labeled Family Lineage. Look to the bottom of the page.

Next posting, we will follow James Greer across the Atlantic to Maryland and see how he fares in the New World....
10/15/10
When We Were Greers, Part I
by Glenn N. Holliman

Benjamin Greer, A Larger than Life Frontiersman from an Amazing Scottish Lineage!

As if the stories about the Boones and Wilcoxsons were not enough family lore to keep many genealogists busy, I now introduce a robust leader of the frontier, the 5thgreat grandfather of my generation, one Benjamin Greer. In the year 1767, Benjamin married Rachel Wilcoxson, niece of Daniel Boone. Between then and her death in 1790, the couple had ten children, one being Jesse Greer, Sr., whom we will later discuss. He later fathered five more children by a second wife, for a total of 15 newGreers.

Benjamin was born in February 9, 1746 in AlbemarleCounty, Virginia and died in Kentucky in 1810. His parents were from Maryland and earlier ancestors from Scotland. Benjamin could be the subject of a Hollywood movie as he chased Cherokee Indians, fought as a patriot captain at the Battle of King's Mountain, thrashed a soldier caught stealing, hung Tories and later told his Baptist Church what they could do with their rules on abstinence (from drink, not sex obviously).


[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TLHQLgg-NRI/AAAAAAAABWU/eOHcYXIX5lc/s400/1924+Frankie+Osborne,+Gerery,+Charles+%26+Louise+Stansbery.jpg]In this faded photo above made in the early 1920s in the Appalachian Mountains, we see Frances Wilson Osborne, a great great grand daughter of Benjamin Greer, holding her latest grandchild, GeraldineStansberry. On the horse are Louise and CharlesStansbery.

During the life of Benjamin, the Greers, Osbornes andWilsons settled in Watagua and Ashe Counties, North Carolina. This photo was probably made in Sullivan County, Tennessee or Damascus, Virginia and was recently uncovered in the collection of Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick.
We will look carefully at Benjamin's large life in later postings, but will first examine our amazing Greer heritage. Actually one should say McGregor and that line goes back, believe it or not, to one Hugh II, born before 680 and King of the Scottish realm of Dalriada from 691 to 695. The name McGregor became Grierson and then Grier and Greer. Before coming to Maryland in the 1680s, our ancestors hailed from southern Scotland in and around Dumfrieshire. A map of that region is below.Double click on the map to enlarge.

[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TLHSLpwl7uI/AAAAAAAABWc/Bo9Uh_0pG3Q/s400/2010+Dumfries+Scotland+001.jpg]

More on our Scottish heritage in the next posting....
10/6/10
When We Were Wilcoxsons, Part IV
by Glenn N. Holliman

Below, a map from Robert Morgan's book on Daniel Boone, available through Algonquin Books of Chapel Hill, NC. Notice the Cumberland Gap, Boonesborough and Bryan's Station, all important places in our family history. Click on the map and it will enlarge.

[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TJpsq-4eZ-I/AAAAAAAABS8/kN_YpQiOVlk/s400/Kentucky+Map+001.jpg]
In 1779 Rachel Wilcoxson Bryan, my generation's fifth great aunt, settled with her relatives, Wilcoxsons and Bryan(t)s at Bryan's Station, Kentucky. (see map above for location) There were numerous Indian attacks, the most threatening in 1782 when the women of the Station prevented it firery destruction by carrying badly needed buckets of water from the spring to the Station while surrounded by Indians. A memorial exists for their efforts. A 5thgreat uncle, Daniel Wilcoxson, was a captain at the Station.

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TJpnUHsTzGI/AAAAAAAABSs/pjTY9_amv7s/s400/Bryan+Fort,+Kentucky+001.jpg]Above from the Kentucky Historical Society, this drawing of the women, several our family members, leaving the protection of Bryan's Station, to collect water from a spring. The awed Shawnee held their fire, and the women returned safely to the fort with the precious liquid. The settlement was saved.

By 1779, now 60 years of age, and evidently prosperous, JohnWilcoxson and Sarah, returned to the Yadkin Valley leaving Kentucky to the younger children and kin. With the American Revolution underway and Lord Granville of England no longer owner of a huge portion of North Carolina, long time settlers such as John and Sarah could now register their land with the new government.

In January 1780, John began to do so for 640 acres on both sides of Bear Creek in Rowan County, NC. Bear Creek is so named because Sarah's younger brother, Daniel Boone, had killed over 90 bears in the area in one year. (Because Daniel and others had killed so much local game, hunters had to keep moving west.)

Seemingly no place seemed safe for the extended family. British General Cornwallis had invaded South Carolina and invaded North Carolina. The Revolutionary War was also a civil war, with neighbor against neighbor. John and Sarah may have left Kentucky to avoid hostile Indians. However, they returned to find a hostile British Army and Tories! Armies marched to and fro, the biggest North Carolina battles being at Guildford Court House and Kings Mountain. Our ancestors fought at both battles which we will feature in later posts.

[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TJpkQZYdKwI/AAAAAAAABSk/J4pqvOb05KU/s400/Boone+in+NC.jpg]Map from Robert Morgan's biography of Boone.

John died sometime after 1798, after selling the last of his North Carolina land to a son, William Wilcoxson, my generation's 5thgreat uncle. Of course, Wilcoxson land was adjacent to Squire Boone's settlement (see above map). Daniel Boone was married to Rebecca Bryan. John seemingly left no will that has been found. Nor do we know his grave site.

Sarah moved to live with a daughter, another pioneer woman, Elizabeth Wilcoxson Cutbirth ( my 5th great aunt). Sarah died there in Madison County, Kentucky in 1815. Another source has her living in southern Clark County, Kentucky, not far fromBoonesboro and dying at the home of her grandson, Jesse BooneWilcoxson, a son of Samuel Wilcoxson.

Next Nancy Wilcoxson marries Benjamin Greer....and more frontier turmoil!
11/25/10
When We Were Greers, Part V
by Glenn N. Holliman

More on our Day and Taylor Ancestors along the Chesapeake Bay

By the early 1700s Joppa Town was a major seaport on the Atlantic Coast. German settlers in Pennsylvania and the Scot Irish, who were filling the interior of Pennsylvania and Maryland, 'rolled' hogsheads of tobacco to the dozens of wharfs at Joppa. Below is an engraving from the Valentine Museum in Richmond, Virginia showing how Chesapeake planters moved their precious goods to port. The road from York, Pennsylvania to Joppa, Maryland was known as a 'rolling road'.

[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TM29MRWl0YI/AAAAAAAABeI/y8CACgrp9wM/s400/1700s+rolling+roads+001.jpg]
In 1724, a new town of Joppa was laid out on Taylor's Choice, in all probability part of our 9th great grandfather's Arthur Taylor's Choice (300 acres at least from the 1680s). In the photograph below ,is the historical marker with the 1960s Episcopal Church of the Resurrection in the background. In 1724, St. Johns Parish moved from Edgemore to Joppa on this site.


[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TM2-3P6HPeI/AAAAAAAABeQ/Yzu77zNSQ18/s400/2010+Joppa+sign.jpg]
What do we know of our Taylor ancestors?

My generation's 8th great grandmother (8 GGM) was Anne Taylor b 1660 and married November 2, 1675 at the age of 15 to fifty year old James Greer (8th GGF) in Baltimore. Hmmm...a marriage for whose convenience? Our Anne died May 13, 1716 in Baltimore. One of their children would be John Greer, my 7th GGF.

Ann was the daughter of Arthur and Margaret Hill Taylor (9th GGPs). Margaret, our 9th GGM, has no accurate dates that I have found. Arthur was born in 1648, a bit before his parents, Johnand Margaret Phinney Taylor (10th GGPs) were married August 28, 1649 at St. Mary's Church, Lichfield, Stafford, England. John (10th GGF) was born 1629 and died 1675 in Baltimore.

Arthur, a successful planter, died November 1728.

More on the Greers and adjacent families in the next posting....
11/17/10
When We Were Greers, Part IV
by Glenn N. Holliman  

In the early 1700s, our Ancestors Prospered along the Gunpowder River
Much of this article is from Maryland's Early Settlers Book, No. 18 under James Greer.  On the Family Lineage
 page,  one will find new family trees under Greer, Taylor and Day.  Please scroll to the bottom of the page for these 
three expanded lineages.

By 1688 the marriage of James Greer, first generation Scotsman to Maryland, and Ann Taylor (my generations 8th great grand parents (8th GGP), resulted in the birth of John Greer, Sr (b. between 1682 - 1688). John, Sr. in 1704 married Sarah Day (my generation's 7th great grandparents), the daughter of Nicholas and Sarah Day (my generation's 8th great grandparents) at St. John's Episcopal parish at Joppa, then Baltimore County, now Herford county.

The church was an unpainted log structure, 20 ft by 40 ft that soon, as did most untreated wooden structures, crumbled before the elements. Today, the EdgewoodOfficer's Club of the famous Aberdeen Proving Ground occupies the site.


Days Cove, named after our Day family line, is a backwater bay of the Gunpowder River near Joppatown, Maryland. Our 8thgreat grandfather, Nicholas Day, owned land here near Interstate 95 and Highway 40, the Pulaski Highway. PhotostakenOctober 2010 by Glenn N. Holliman along Highway 40, the Pulaski Highway , south ofJoppatown.

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TN1nA1PVl0I/AAAAAAAABhs/zoC2G892mPY/s400/2010%2BDays%2BCove%252C%2BMaryland%2Bsign.jpg]
John and Sarah (7th great grandparents), purchased land near her father's plantation, Nicholas Day, along the Great Falls of the Gunpowder River. John's grandfather John Taylor (10th great grandfather), father of Arthur Taylor (9th great grandfather), lived near the ferry along the south side of the Gunpowder.

The old map belows shows Joppa, the Gunpowder, a ferry and the first roads in what is now Herford County, Maryland. The current major port of Baltimore is west of Joppa, not shown on this map.

[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TM2JDBB2pnI/AAAAAAAABeA/Ez2-p9_Ttww/s400/2010+Joppa+map+001.jpg]
We know that in 1687, Arthur Taylor sold 75 acres of land from 'Arthur's Choice on the south side of a branch of the Gunpowder River, called Bird Run to James Greer and daughter, AnnTaylor Greer. Bird Run is now the Bird River which flows through a modern suburban mall in Whitemarch, Maryland, not far from Days Cove. Arthur Taylor was the oldest son of oneJohn Taylor. Arthur had acquired the property in 1683. This land will eventually become the site of Joppa, a major port that later disappears and becomes a classic American ghost town.

Ironically, also along the Gunpowder another family, theStansberys, had settled. Stansberys live in and around Baltimore to this day. One of the Stansbery families will treck south in the 1700s, and generations later will result in my grandfather,Charles S. Stansbery, Sr. (1893 - 1957). Charles will marryMayme Osborne, whose grand mother was, yes, one Caroline Greer Wilson (1828 - 1911). My immediate family has deep Maryland roots!

Yes, there are a lot of family names above and it can be confusing. More on these ancestors in later postings....For a Family Tree on Days, Taylors and Osbornes, please go to the Family Lineage Page found on this blog.
11/11/10
A Veterans' Day Salute
by Glenn N. Holliman
U.S. Army, Vietnam 1969
A Thank You to our Veterans

I suspect our family members have been represented in our country's battles from Colonial Chesapeake to the 21st Century Middle Eastern Wars. As it is impossible to list all of them in any kind of complete listing, I will let my nephew, Capt. Jonathan Murphy, USA, take the salute for all who been on active duty, the Reserves or National Guard. Jonathan is on duty somewhere in Afghanistan, his second tour in four years. His family waits for him in the States.

For a time he was Captain of the Guard at the Tomb of the Unknown Soldier in Washington, DC. Below are two photographs - one of Jonathan leading his platoon up the steps of the Memorial and the second of him walking the Guard. For those of us who have stood on guard in other fields and seas, including my father, uncles, nephews and cousins, we express our appreciation to him and all relatives who have gone before him.


[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TNBhNVred0I/AAAAAAAABes/bq3TZRj9yko/s400/2008+Jonathan+at+Tomb.jpg]


[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TNBhYbhl1FI/AAAAAAAABe0/0oInmoxB6UQ/s400/2008+Jonathan+at+Tomb+(2).jpg]

Among his ancestors are veterans of the French and Indian War, Revolution, War of 1812, Civil War, World War II, Viet Nam, the Cold War and recent Middle East conflicts. One great grandfather, Luke Stansbery (1750 - 1848), was a prisoner of war of the British in Charleston, SC 1780 during the American Revolution.
[image: http://img1.blogblog.com/img/icon18_wrench_allbkg.png]2/29/10
When We Were Greers, Part IX
by Glenn N. Holliman
Joppa Town, Maryland - A Place for Family Weddings!

During their first marriage, Sarah and John had numerous children. Our direct ancestor is one of their sons, John Greer, Jr., my generation's 6th great grandfather, who was born 1714, again on the Gunpowder River. He would die May 1782 in Wilkes County, North Carolina. Notice the migration south. Much of this extended family will settle in North Carolina, including our direct ancestors.

John Greer Jr. married Sarah Day Elliott at the St. John's Parish in Joppa, Maryland in 1736. A second wife would be Nancy Lowe Walker.

Below is the plot of land, roped off, where the church stood.Samuel and Mary Harrod Stansbery (Stansbury) also married at this location in 1761. In the left background is a 1962 structure, the Episcopal Church of the Resurrection, signifying the rebirth of Joppa in the 1960s, two hundred years after it achieved ghost town status.


[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TP0uHD68uxI/AAAAAAAABsU/HDyGrJFAmZY/s400/2010%2BSt.%2BJohn%2527s%2Blocation%2B1724%2BJoppa.jpg]
In the 1960s a real estate development company, realizing the potential of a location along slow moving rivers, near I - 95 and only 25 miles from downtown Baltimore, created a 'new' Joppa Town. Below is an advertisement from that era. Click twice and the images will enlarge. Oh, to have 1960 prices with 2010 incomes!

[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TP0vI5aGXII/AAAAAAAABsc/ksVtbBO3yKw/s400/2010%2BJoppa%2Btown%2B1960s%2B001.jpg]


Next posting, we follow the Greers to the Mountains of Western North Carolina....
12/19/10
When We Were Greers, Part VIII
by Glenn N. Holliman

The Troubled Marriage of John, Sr. and Sarah Day Greer

My generation's 7th great grandfather, John Greer, Sr. was born about 1688 along the Gunpowder River in Joppa, Maryland. He married Sarah Day, b 1686 in Baltimore County, at St. John's Parish, March 4, 1704.

John Greer, Sr. inherited the 75 acres that Arthur Taylor had given James Greer and Anne Taylor, and seems to have traded this land and others, buying and selling acreage around the Joppa area, a land speculator if you will. For example, in 1718, he sold land which stood above Nicholas Day's plantation and near to an Indian cabin. An interesting tidbit of history has made it through the centuries - in 1738 John Sr. was bitten by a rattle snake above the mouth of the Long Green River.
[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TP0VS0uMxHI/AAAAAAAABsM/cAIWSaPgVlE/s400/2010%2BJoppa%2BParish.jpg]St. John's Episcopal Parish moved several times in its history. Both John Greer, Sr. and John Greer, Jr. would be married in the parish. As Joppa Town deteriorated, Edward Day, a descendant of our Day ancestors, built a new St. John's. Ironically, another set of my 7th GGPs were married at St. John's - Samuel and Mary Harrod Stansbury on April 1, 1761. All you Stansberys, please make a mental note. In time, we will trace the Stansbery line from Maryland to Tennessee and beyond.

He was evidently snake bit in marriage also. According to vestry books in Baltimore County, our John Greer Sr. found himself admonished for co-habitating unlawfully with one Chloe Jones. While no date is given, he claims to have married Cleo. They had four children, evidently born out of wedlock.

My generation's 7th GGM, Sarah, went to live with a son, Aquillaat the Chilimara Plantation in Maryland, and later she remarried one Obadiah Pritchett. We are not sure when Sarah died - sources differ but her name is on no legal deed releases after 1747. Greer family compilations put her death between 1742 and 1747.

John Greer, Sr. with his second family of children immigrated west and south. They were living in Onslow County, North Carolina in 1752 when John died at the age of 72. One source states there were debts and the four new, minor children, were bound out to pay off his debts after his death.

The will states he left twelve pence sterling to his six sons and three daughters. However, to John Greer, Jr. (my generation's 6 GGF), Sr. left his Negro man, Jack, and two hunting guns. John Sr. may have been a gunsmith, as he left his gun stock tools and all tools to his 'Dearly Beloved Wife Cloe Greer', who was also the executrix. This court was held at Johnston on the New River in Onslow County July 1752. This is the first time human slavery emerges in a direct ancestral will.

(Most of the above was taken from Genealogy.com under the name of John G. Greer. Sources include land, rent and court records in Baltimore County, Maryland. The Greer family history, starting on the Gunpowder River in Maryland has been well researched. Google the names, and one can spend many hours sorting through the materials. Beware, as is normal in genealogy, not all dates and names agree.)

12/11/10
When We Were Greers Part VII
by Glenn N. Holliman

The Lord of Lag

My lords and ladies of the MacGregor Clan, before we begin to move forward in the American colonial period, I wanted to share some pictures I found on line of our Greer ancestry in Scotland. North of Dumfries, Scotland is a small village named Dunscore. Move east a few miles (one can do this on a Google map) and lo and behold standing next to a farm house are the remains of the manor house, a quasi-castle of the Lord of Lag, the Greer family from which James Greer, my generation's 8th GGF, immigrated in the 1670s. His father (9th GGF) was Sir James Grier, a descendant of the MacGregor clan. See October 22, 2010 posting.

The remains of Lag Tower, 1790 print. The remains of the tower and 'castle' look dramatic in this 220 year old print. Remember the facility was constructed no later than the 1400s.

[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TPVw1_xYJ6I/AAAAAAAABpU/GeK-MexVHgk/s400/lagtower-1790-2.jpg]
Below is a decidedly unromantic picture of the remains taken from a Google street map in 2007. Note the red farm equipment in front of the castle. A barn and farm house are to the right of this photo. You can locate this yourself. Go to Google Maps and drill down to to Dunscore, Scotland, about 7 miles northeast of Dumfries. Move your little 'yellow man' a few miles east over Holm Road. Look to the right (south), and you will spot this ruin below. This was and is an isolated part of the world. Many long, cold dreary nights; perhaps that is why our ancestors perfected Scotch!

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TPV2w3u1pWI/AAAAAAAABpc/K_Mg_M-I52Y/s400/Lag%2BCastle%2B2007%2B001.jpg]
Next posting, back to the New World and Colonial Times....
12/2/10
When We Were Greers, Part VI
by Glenn N. Holliman

What do we know of our Day ancestors?
(Continuing the series of ancestral families of G.W. and Frances Wilson Osborne)


Sarah Day, my generation's 7th Great Grand Mother (7th GGM), was born 1686 in Baltimore, Maryland and died March 1758 in same county. She married John Greer, Sr. (7th GGF) March 4, 1704 in Joppa, Maryland at St. John's Episcopal parish.

Her father was Nicholas Day (8th GGF), 1635 abt in Wales, England - 1704 in Baltimore, and mother Sarah Lowe (8th GGM). The couple married in 1684 in Baltimore Co., Maryland. Sarah was the daughter of William Lowe.

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TNQaCge7BKI/AAAAAAAABgE/ZpMGKzuUTSs/s400/2010+Site+of+Joppa,+a+ghost+town.jpg]This trail through the woods at Joppa, Maryland leads down to the Gunpowder River. Imagine if you can, wharfs, dray men, live stock and thousands of hogsheads of tobacco being loaded in ocean going cargo ships. Now a grown up river side with only a few monuments to mark the ghost town. Photos October 2010 by the author.
Nicholas Day's father was named also Nicholas Day (9thGGF) and mother was Sarah Cox (9th GGM). The birthplaces of these 9th GGParents are unknown but they married in Maryland.

The last few posts have been confusing, so I have added under the Family Lineage page these new family trees. What is evident is all these ancestors were farmers raising tobacco, and most likely corn and livestock. Their lives centered about the Gunpowder River and the town ofJoppa.

In this photo below one observes the silted Gunpowder River. On this site in the first half of the 1700s were wharfs, perhaps as many as a hundred lining the river. This particular location is located precisely in the center of the western edge of Old Joppa. It is difficult to envision what was once here - one of the premier ports of the Western Hemisphere in its day. This is an Eastern ghost town!

[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TNQaxHArVZI/AAAAAAAABgM/fJ9FUWLOZZQ/s400/2010+Gunpower+River+at+Joppa,+MD.jpg]
More of our ancestors next posting....
[image: http://img1.blogblog.com/img/icon18_wrench_allbkg.png]

1/24/11
When We Were Greers, Part XI
by Glenn N. Holliman

The Greers Move Through the Great Valley of Virginia
to Relocate in North Carolina

Both my generation's 7th and 6th grandfathers, John Greer, Sr. and John Greer, Jr. left Maryland and moved south and west to the then frontier of western North Carolina. John, Sr. left to establish a new family. John, Jr. to acquire virgin farm land made available as the Cherokee were pushed from their historic hunting grounds.

John Greer, Jr. was born in Joppa, Maryland sometime between 1714 and 1718. He married at St. John's Episcopal Church inJoppa one Sarah Elliott, my generation's 6th great grandmother. John, Jr. would die in Wilkes Country, North Carolina in theYadkin River Valley in May 1782. An early settler to the area, he must have prospered as he served his community as a justice of the peace. His wife then was Nancy Lowe Walker.


The map below captures the American frontier of 1763 when English Crown established the Proclamation Line, the black line in this map that stretches from New England to Georgia. No colonial settler was allowed to purchase or take Indian land west of the line. The dark purple reflects colonial settlement from 1700 to 1760.

The Greers, Boones, Wilcoxsons and another of our relations moved from Maryland and Pennsylvania down the Shenandoah to the purple circle next to the word 'frontier' in western North Carolina. Notice how far in advance this area in the YadkinValley around Wilkes County, North Carolina was from other Carolina settlements. This area was hunting ground for the Cherokee (just over the Proclamation line in what is now Tennessee).
This is a reproduction from Making America, published 2003 byHoughton Mifflin Company, and is not to be used for commercial purposes.

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TSCw6nVPICI/AAAAAAAABxY/3qT7l-Wz7ME/s400/2010%2BProclamation%2BLine%2Bof%2B1763.jpg]
The move from the Chesapeake south evidently took place in several stages. My generation's 5th great grandfather, the Revolutionary War patriot, Benjamin Greer, was born February 9, 1746 in Augusta Country, Virginia, near the town of Staunton. Augusta County is smack in the middle of the Shenandoah Valley and was and is the Great Road from the Northeast to the Southwest in the Eastern United States. For the past half century, one travels on I-81 and since the dawn of the automobile age, U.S. Highway 11.

Our ancestors - the Osbornes, Greers, Wilcoxsons, Boones,Wilsons and many others, the majority Scotch-Irish who poured off the ships in Philadelphia - began in earnest in the 1730s and 1740's to settle the back country of Virginia. With the defeat of the Tuscarora nation in eastern and central North Carolina, the Carolina frontier was pushed west toward the foothills and mountains of the Appalachian chain, into Cherokee and later, Shawnee hunting territory.

In the next postings, more of our frontier families in a contested land....




1/10/11
When We Were Greers, Part X
by Glenn N. Holliman

More on Nicholas Day, my Generation's 8th Great Grandfather
and William the Conqueror!

I thought I had exhausted my notes on the Greers, Days andTaylors in Joppa Town, Maryland when I chanced upon some more materials. Below is information in part from Wally Garchowat Ancestry.ca. His work adds to the tapestry we have on our Chesapeake Bay roots.

The date of birth for Nicholas Day is uncertain, anywhere from 1620 to 1635, but he seems to have come from Wales. He died before February 4, 1704/5. Queen Anne would be on the throne of England at that time, and Maryland a colony for 70 odd years. Philadelphia had been founded only a quarter century before, so the British settlement of North America was still unfolding.

In the General Land Office Patents, the Land Commissioner's Office in Annapolis, is a statement that on February 22, 1658, "Nicholas Day, a grown man sells himself into 'slave bondage' for 'ship transportation' to the New World. He along with seven others bound himself to Richard Owens who granted them their freedom and notified his 'Lordship Grace' that they were entitled to 50 acres of land." Our 8th great grandfather evidently was an indentured servant who put in his time, and then began a successful transition to that of a colonial land owner and planter.

June 3, 1693, this great grandfather of ours purchased 200 acres of land along the Gunpowder River, a tract called 'William the Conqueror'. He paid 1200 pounds of tobacco for this extravagantly named acreage near the Gunpowder Falls. A few months later he bought another 150 acres for 300 pounds of tobacco, a piece named 'Lesser Chance'. He held onto this land until his death, when he bequeathed it to Nicholas Jr.

His daughter, Sarah Day - named after her mother - received part of his stock of 'hoggs'. Well, Sarah had married John Greer, Sr. in 1704, and lived on Greer land. Of course, no one knew how troubled Sarah's marriage to John Greer, Sr. (my generation's 7thgreat grandfather) would be, and that he would be hauled before a parish vestry in Joppa and charged with infidelity. Embarrassing to say the least.

The land 'William the Conqueror'? Purchased eventually by a King family who gave their name to a rural village along the Gunpowder. Google Kingsville, Maryland and 'William the Conqueror' and discover an area map and photographs of more recent colonial buildings. A marker stone with Edward Day's name on it near Highway 1 still stands. Edward Day was a descendant of our Nicholas Day.

The Gunpowder River below the Falls at Joppa Town, Maryland down stream from Kingsville, Maryland. Here the river is silted and marshy just before it flows into the Chesapeake Bay. Photo by the writer 2010.
[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TR432M56P8I/AAAAAAAABxQ/IbUws0QUCtM/s400/2010%2BJoppa%2Bat%2BGunpowder%2BRiver.jpg]
However, the point of this article to demonstrate a rags to riches story of a great grand father, who evidently arrived as an indentured servant and died a man of some means. This is a prototype example of the America Dream in the life of an ancestor.



2/28/11
When We Were Greers XIV
by Glenn N. Holliman

The Gathering Storm - The Tide of Revolution Sweeps Over the Carolinas...

...and into the mountains and valleys of the Appalachian highlands. Many Cherokee and Shawnee, infuriated by the continued encroachment of American settlers, became allies of the British during the American Revolution. Bottled up by General George Washington outside of New York City, the British turned their forces and energies southward. Under Generals Clinton and Cornwallis, the British invaded Georgia and South Carolina in 1779 and 1780.

Tory sympathizers arose in the Carolinas and in essence a civil war swept the Colonial South as neighbor turned against neighbor. This maelstrom of the late 1770s and early 1780s engulfed my families - the Greers, Wilsons, Wilcoxsons, Osbornes, Boones, Stansberys and Hollimans.

Walter Edgar's excellent work on the 1780 and 1781 conflict in the Carolinas captures the many battles, skirmishes and clashes that involved this writer's ancestral families. Highly recommended reading for those interested in this period of the American Revolution.
[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/-OdQ33bUzHb8/TVvptmTqvAI/AAAAAAAAB8I/L98DMNnPhRw/s400/1780%2BSouth%2BCarolina%2Bwar.jpg]
In later articles I will write of Luke Stansbery, a great grandfather, who was captured at the fall of Charleston in 1780 and was incarcerated for a year. James Grantson Holliman, my 4th great grandfather on my father's side of the family, served six months in the North Carolina patriot militia. I have written how the Boones and Wilcoxsons held the Kentucky frontier from the British and Shawnee at Boonesborough. Great grandfathers and uncles in the Osborne line did their share of fierce fighting also, which I also will explore later.

For now we concentrate on Benjamin Greer, my generation's fifth great grandfather. We know that in the summer of 1780, he served as a captain in the militia invading and destroying Cherokee villages in eastern Tennessee. Pension requests on file indicate enlisted men served under Capt. Greer that summer and state the month.


Young chiefs, furious that older chiefs had sold so much of Indian hunting grounds, had thrown in their lot with the British and sent their braves to harass the settler's frontier. Benjamin and others, including our Osborne family, responded.


Search and Destroy
During my Vietnam service in the 1960s, the U.S. Army engaged in what were called 'search and destroy' missions, that is invading suspected Vietnamese communist territory and/or villages destroying suspected arms cashes, food and shelters. Similar tactics were adopted in 1780 when North Carolina militiamen led, on at least one occasion by Captain Benjamin Greer in July and August, swept through a portion of what is now East Tennessee, burning villages and destroying crops and livestock.  Ironically the Cherokee had absorbed a considerable portion of Anglo culture even to the extent of raising hogs and cattle.

The Cherokee, men, women and children, generally escaped into the coves and high mountains hiding from and occasionally harassing the superior Patriot forces. After the violent sweep through villages, the Cherokee returned to their destroyed huts and corn crops, and faced a winter of hunger. Many died as a result, and the Indian threat to the East Tennessee, Southern Virginia and Western North Carolina frontier diminished.

The North Carolina militia then turned its attention to the invasion by Lt. General Earl Cornwallis and his officers such as the infamous Col. Baastre Tarleton and Major Patrick Ferguson.

That incursion of the British and uprising by Tory sympathizers led to the pivotal battle in the Southern campaign - the historic Battle of Kings Mountain.



Next posting - the Battle that Turned the Tide of War


2/20/11
When We Were Greers, Part XIII
[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/-x2Fq4tAXjqk/TVgCX5_-KBI/AAAAAAAAB7g/_6jFiJH-jto/s400/1915%2BWatauga%2BCo.%2BHistory.jpg]
by Glenn N. Holliman
Benjamin Greer, A Son of the Wild Frontier
(Among sources are: "Going Home for History, The Greer Family of Wilkes County, North Carolina, Roots Web on Ancestry.Com and the web site of genealogists Judith and Ralph Terry, Coleman County, Texas. )

Ben descended from the Scottish clan of Macgregors, a vigorous tribe of sometime cattle rustlers and brigands that drove other clans and the English to distraction. Born on the Virginia frontier, Augusta or Albermarle County on February 9, 1746, he married a niece of Daniel Boone, Nancy Wilcoxson, in 1767 at Old Fields, Rowan County, North Carolina. Like her uncle and other relatives, the Greers, Bryans, Boones and Wilcoxsons fought Indians, Tories and on occasion the British Army. Later in life Benjamin took on his local Baptist Church!


Some of what we know of Benjamin is from the 1915 work of John Preston Arthur in his History of Watauga County (North Carolina) available now as a reprint from Genealogical Publishing, Baltimore, Maryland.

A frontiersman, Ben lived to see Tennessee and Kentucky settled, the fighting of a second American War of Independence with the English, and his brood of children and grandchildren spread his genes throughout the mountains and valleys of Tennessee, North Carolina and Kentucky. On October 23, 1816, he laid down his burden and died in Green River, Kentucky at the home of a daughter.

For one violent year from the summer of 1780 to the summer of 1781, as a militia captain, Ben, his brother Jesse and their men stalked and fought through the mountains of North Carolina and Tennessee, and when they and others were through, a new nation was born. Here is what we know of the story of my generation's fifth great grandfather.
He and Nancy Boone Wilcoxson (May 17, 1743 - October 30, 1790) had ten children, before Nancy died in Wilkes County, North Carolina. Benjamin remarried Sarah Atkinson Jones, the widow of Thomas Jones and daughter of Edmund Atkinson. This couple had five children, making Ben the father of 15 Greers, a family that would continue to multiply. Among the children of Nancy and Benjamin was one Jesse Greer, Sr., born 1778. This Jesse is my generation's 4th great grandfather, and we will later examine his interesting story.

We know in 1767 in Bedford County, Virginia, Ben sold to one Mathew Tolbot 163 acres his father, Jesse Greer, had given him. With the proceeds he moved to Wilkes County (then Rowan County), North Carolina, married Nancy and purchased land on both sides of Cub Creek.

Here on the frontier, they raised their children. Fate intervened with the American Revolution in which Ben and his brother, Jesse, another militia captain took part. In the next articles we will examine three episodes in Ben's military career. They are:

- The 1780 Cherokee-Militia conflicts in what is now East Tennessee
- The 1780 Battle of Kings Mountain
- The 1781 Rescue of Col. Ben Cleveland from Tories

Next article, the Clash of Cherokee and Frontiersmen
2/9/11
When We Were Greers, Part XII
by Glenn N. Holliman 

The Will of John Greer, Jr. 1782

When John Greer, Jr. (my generation's 6th great grandfather) died in 1782 in Wilkes Country, North Carolina, the Revolutionary War had just ended with the defeat of Cornwallis at Yorktown, Virginia. The back country of North Carolina had been divided between Tories, those that supported the Crown, and a larger number of American Patriots. The Greer families would be caught up in both the divisions of the Revolution in the 1770s and 80s, and the bitter war of the 1860s. In each conflict, the family would experience violence and hardship.

As noted in the last post, John Greer, Jr. was born in Joppa, Maryland and migrated down the Great Valley Road of Virginia, stopping in Augusta County in 1746 to give birth to my generation's 5th great grandfather, Benjamin Greer. According to Ancestry.com/~krworley/p2.htm, the Greers arrived in SurryCounty (now Wilkes County), North Carolina about 1771.

The Regulator Movement was in full swing in western North Carolina as backwoods families protested high taxes and lack of representation in the colonial capitol of New Bern. In 1778, John was appointed a justice of the peace for the first court after the organization of Wilkes County. Evidently, the family was a leader in the community which is borne out in the careers of at least two of his sons.

Below is a contemporary road map of the Wilkes County, North Carolina area. Wilkesboro is some 74 miles west of Winston-Salem and 30 some odd miles east of Boone. The Greers, Boones,Wilsons, Osbornes, Wilcoxsons and other families kin to my generation moved to this frontier in the 1760s and 1770s. Click twice on the map to enlarge.

[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TSDg84GT_zI/AAAAAAAABxo/Q_oo5cFD5c8/s400/2011%2BWilkes%2BCo.%2BNC.jpg]
In 1782, John Greer, Jr. died and his will was probated. To his second wife Nanney he left the plantation of 492 acres, and then to son Jessey after the death of Nanney. (Jessey would be a captain in the American Revolution).

There were slaves in this family, a bit unusual for the frontier but not for the amount of acreage the Greers farmed. Bequeathed in continued human bondage was a Negro girl, Pheby to John's daughter Ann Mitchell, and to daughter Hannah Demoss, a Negro girl, Hannah. Hannah had married the local sheriff, Lewis Demoss.

The remainder of the estate was divided equally amongst these children: Aqulla, John, Benjamin (my 5th great grandfather), Joshua, Jessey, Rachel Mitchell, Sarah Hardgrave and HannahDemoss. The executors were wife Nancy (spelled differently here) and a friend, John Brown. Witnesses were Archelus Walker (a next door neighbor), Nancy Walker and Sarah Greer.

On the tax list of 1782, Ann Greer, presumably the widow, has 600 acres and four slaves. The majority of the family lived in Captain Abraham Demoss's district.


Next posting - Benjamin Greer, a son of the Wild Frontier!
Home
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3/24/11
When We Were Greers, Part XVI
by Glenn N. Holliman

Rallying the Troops at Alexander's Fork on the Green River


Near Gilbert Town, North Carolina the Over the Mountain men and other regional militias gathered on October 3, 1780 and prepared to continue their march toward the forces of Major Patrick Ferguson, commander of British troops in the area.  Ferguson had pledged to bring fire and sword to the Anglo-frontier in the Appalachian Mountains.  Enraged, Patriot militia prepared to fight back.  Others joined them.
[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/-7RMrtR4JamY/TWVvjYinR-I/AAAAAAAACAM/bXN-FQ9N29A/s1600/1780+Gilbert+Town+Markere.jpg]


The morning of October 3, 1780, reinforced by troops from South Carolina and Georgia, Col. John Sevier assembled the troops for a meeting.  Gathering the rugged, buck skinned men in a circle,Capt. Benjamin Greer's commander and neighbor, Col. Benjamin Cleveland of Wilkes County, North Carolina, spoke first.  Cleveland at the time was already up to 250 pounds, round in shape and in his early 40s.  A jovial man and one with a large appetite he is reported to have weighted 450 pounds at his death (probably a sudden heart attack at age 69 while eating).  He was known by his men as Old Roundabout.  Cleveland, for whom Cleveland, Tennessee and Cleveland County, South Carolina are named, adopted the personal soubriquet as  his plantation's name in Wilkes County.

Like, my fifth great grandfather Greer, Cleveland had endured a summer of fighting the Cherokee, and probably felt fatigue.  However, he rose to the occasion and told those assembled they had a priceless opportunity to serve their country, and to leave a rich heritage to their children.  He further spoke words offering men a way out if they feared to go further.

Col. Shelby then proposed that those who desired to leave to step three paces to the rear.  No one did.  A murmur of applause rose from the hundreds of  men, proud of what they were doing.  Shelby advised that in soon meeting the foe they were to advance Indian style, hiding behind trees and rocks, killing and disabling all one could.

The troops were then dismissed to prepare several meals and for a march.  Colonels Cleveland and McDowell found some whiskey and shared it amongst the men.

Major Patrick Ferguson, commander of British forces, knew of this large group of Patriot militia.  Fearing to be outnumbered, Ferguson set up a defensive perimeter in  rugged terrain just over the North Carolina border in South Carolina.

The scene and words quoted above are from the book (see below) by Pat Alderman, published, of course, by the Overmountain Press, Johnson City, Tennessee. I found this copy in December 2010 at the Historical Center in Jonesborough, Tennessee.  If a visitor there, do drop in and tour the Center and its adjacent museum.
[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/-9uZo26GARRI/TWVunLPqNMI/AAAAAAAACAI/KKRgMbenUDs/s320/1780+King%2527s+Mountain.jpg]


The stage was set for the Battle of King's Mountain....
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The Battle of Kings Mountain, 
a Major Turning Point in the American Revolution 


The Carolinas were in an uproar in 1780 as the British rolled up patriot militias in South Carolina and destroyed a Continental Army and it's commander General Gates at Camden. Irregular patriots - Francis Marion and Thomas Sumpter - led guerrilla bands to challenge the resupply trains of the Crown.  British Lt. General Earl Cornwallis's subordinates Tarelton and Fergueson were heavy handed in suppressing the rebellion - taking few prisoners. Major Ferguson enraged the frontier settlers, especially the "Watauga" mountain men when he threatened to burn all homes and farms if they gave opposition to the British forces.

The American "Over the Mountain Men" took the threats personally and mobilized their militia at Sycamore Shoals (now Elizabethton, Tennessee) and under Colonels Isaac Shelby and John Sevier poured through the gaps in the Appalachian mountains. In Wilkes County, nestled against the Tennessee line, one Colonel Ben Cleveland, a rotund and tough leader, called out the local militia yet again that summer. Captain Benjamin Greer, serving under Cleveland, and his soldiers mustered quickly and joined in the march that was to become on October 7, 1780 - the Battle of Kings Mountain!

[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/-rSceEAM6pOo/TWGWaiQulvI/AAAAAAAAB94/YduWdZZYnTs/s1600/1780+Morganton%252C+NC+marker.jpg]


On September 30, 1780, Greer and the North Carolinians  rendezvoused with Shelby and Sevier at Quaker Meadows in what is now Morganton, North Carolina .  These combined forces, joined by other militia including at least one Osborne relative of my family, began marching south where waited Major Patrick Ferguson and some 1,000 or so Tories and Americans who served in the British Army.  


If Ferguson could destroy the militia army, Georgia and the Carolinas would remain in British hands.  If not Cornwallis and his regulars would be isolated, surrounded by an increasing hostile population.  The Crown would be lost to the South, and quite possibly, finally, the multi-year attempt to quash the American rebellion. Much depended on the coming fight.


By October 3, 1780, the combined militia forces had advanced to Bedford Town, North Carolina where the patriot colonels believed Ferguson might be in waiting.  It was time to call the men to order and confront them with the reality of the coming fight.  


Next, the Rally before Battle
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The Battle that Saved the Revolution in the South
October 7, 1780 found the Americans in an attack position at King's Mountain, South Carolina with Capt. Greer's company embedded in Col. Cleveland's regiment on the north side of Ferguson's powerful defensive lines.  

Much of the success of the American Revolution rested in the courage of the Mountain Men - Greer, Osborneand others - who were about to charge up that hill into musket fire and bayonet.

On the afternoon of October 7, 1780, Capt. Benjamin Greer, my 5th great grandfather, stood ready to lead his company forward through swampy ground and up the dangerous slopes of King's Mountain. Colonel Cleveland's regiment, in which Greer served, is located on the map below represented with the letter 'G'.
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It seemed every man followed the advice of Col. Shelby to use rock and tree in the laborious advance up the hill and into enemy fire.  Cleveland's regiment was ten minutes late getting started due to the marshy terrain, and once moving forward ran into musket fire and the bayonet.  Gradually the Patriot forces, some 1,840 of them, over came the 1,000 or so Tories and British troops. 

Major Patrick Ferguson, wearing a bright red coat, was an easy target on horseback.  Many claimed they fired the bullet that put an end of his life.  Ferguson's boot caught in his stirrup and his body, continuing to receive lead, was dragged hundreds of yards.  With his death, the battle ended in a massive Patriot victory.

When British General Cornwallis heard of the defeat, he reduced his ambitions in the Carolinas. After the Battle of Guilford Courthouse, North Carolina, a Pyrrhic victory the next year, he 'cornered' himself at Yorktown, Virginia.  Bottled up by Washington and the French fleet, he surrendered in October 1781, a year after the Battle of King's Mountain  After six years of combat, the American Revolution was won.

[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/-LaFxuV5nMfk/TWaMqEQ-g9I/AAAAAAAACA8/fYiHl3xuCdU/s400/1780%2BMajor%2BFerguson.jpg]

Who fired that shot that killed the arrogant Scotsman Ferguson (pictured above)?  Watauga County, North Carolina historian, John Preston Arthur, probably reporting local folklore, wrote in 1915 that the American Patriot was none other than Benjamin Greer!  Other historians have listed the names of other soldiers.  One suspects a dozen American marksmen may have fired at Ferguson, so plainly visible dressed in a red coat on a large horse.


One hopes this ancestor of ours finally obtained some rest that winter of 1780/81.  His summer of 1780 is, of course, literally one for the history books.  He made war on both the Cherokee, Tories and the British Empire.  In these endeavors, he was successful.  Was his work done?  Not yet.  The back country of Wilkes County still suffered from Tory infestation, some neighbors against neighbors. 

Next, Benjamin Greer rescues his King's Mountain commander, Col. Benjamin Cleveland, from a Tory band.
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Benjamin Greer Gives a Hint!

[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/-aTKRDzZ7_0E/TWaNAqmkgYI/AAAAAAAACBE/MLXm2VWQd7A/s320/1780+Battlefield+Marker.jpg]

John Preston Arthur in his work on Watauga County, North Carolina history, published in 1915, records an incident during 1780 hostilities that resonated through the decades.. The piece of folklore or fact (probably leans toward 'fact') deals with a private soldier,  Capt. Benjamin Greer who chewed tobacco, and Col. Benjamin Cleveland, a commander in the Patriot militia who was not usually concerned about legal or mannerly niceties.

This story tells us something more about the personality of this ancestor.  I lift it verbatim from Arthur's work.

"Greer's Hint - This 'hint' is thus accounted for by Dr. Draper (a 19th Century historian) in a note at foot of page 442:  Greer was one of Cleveland's heroes.  One of his fellow solders stole his tobacco from him, when he threatened he would whip him for it as soon as he should put his eyes on him. 

Cleveland expostulated with Greer, telling him his men ought to fight the enemy and not each other.  "I will give him a hint of it, anyway," said Greer, and when he met the tobacco pilferer he knocked him down.

Greer's hint was long a by-word in all that region. - Col. W.W. Lenoir."

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/-3MoJ9M0r8zI/TWbjqTs67CI/AAAAAAAACBI/X7looeqgbOU/s320/1780+Benjamin+Cleveland+1.jpg]


A deteriorated statue stands of Col. Benjamin Cleveland in Wilkes County, North Carolina, home of Cleveland and the Greer families.  While no statue or portrait exists of Benjamin Greer, it is of family pride that Cleveland announced Greer 'a hero'.
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Yes, Winston Churchill is a Distant Cousin!

Recently, I read more carefully my email newsletter from the Grierson family history site in Scotland.  As readers of this blog may recall (look in the archives section, lower right of this posting) last October 2010, I published information our the Scottish roots of our Greer connections.

My generation's 9th great grandparents were Sir James Grier (about 1604 - 1666) and Mary Brown of Dumfrieshire, Scotland.  James was born at Capenoch, a large home near Thornhill, north of Dumfries. This couple had numerous children, one being James Grier (Greer) born 1627 who died in Maryland 1688, the founder of my branch of American Greers.

Below is the Maxwelton House located in Kirkland, near Dumfries, Scotland.  Maxwelton House has changed since the early 1600s when the Griersons and Maxwells called it home.  Formerly known as Glencairn, this estate later was acquired by the Laurie family.  Here the famous Scottish song, Annie Laurie, was written.
[image: Glencairn Castle]

Sir James' parents (my generation's 10th great grandparents) wereSir William Grierson (cir 1567 - 1629) and Nichola Maxwell,born about 1578.  Located near Kirkland, the Maxwelton House is a Scottish national treasure (above) and open to the public for tours. You may google Maxwelton House and enjoy stories and views of one of our ancestor's 'modest' homes.  You may do the same for Capenoch.  Sir William, our 10th great grandfather, was the 9th Lord of Lag.
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The connection?  Thanks to an article by Mike Grierson, published in the January 2011 Clan Grierson e-newsletter, we know thatWinston Leonard Spencer Churchill, the British prime minister who led Great Britain and Western Civilization through World War II, is also the 9th great grandson of Sir William Grierson and Nichola Maxwell!

Pictured is the cover of one of the more comprehensive biographies of Winston Churchill. This work by Martin Gilbert, published in 1991, is a page-turner regardless of its intimidating 1,000 plus pages.


Want to know more about your Scottish connections?  Contact clangrierson.com/clan-grierson/ and sign up for the newsletter, view the photos of Capenoch, and learn more about your Scots ancestors and your own tartan!

Next post, back to our Benjamin Greer of the 1700s in Western North Carolina....petulant like his  cousin, Winston!
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Ben Greer Gives Another Hint!


But this time, the hint is to his local Baptist Church, the Three Forks Baptist Church, still ministering today along side Highway 321, a few miles west of Boone, North Carolina.

This is a 19th Century photo of what Three Forks Baptist Church looked like in that day.  Today a 1960s brick building stands along side Highway
[image: https://lh6.googleusercontent.com/-tr_fZwimtGM/TXagg6wA9nI/AAAAAAAACGg/1mgfq97GylI/s400/1800%2BThree%2BForks%2BBaptist%2BChurch.jpg]
In the early 1800s a religious Great Awakening was sweeping the frontier and rural areas of America. The new nation had not a 'national church' although many of the first colonialists had been Puritans in New England and Anglicans in the southern colonies. By the middle 1700s, a new evangelical, dynamic Protestant church was gathering more and more converts. Unlike their Episcopal and more established denominational counterparts, many Baptist pastors had only as much education as their congregations; that is to say, they had little. But they had enthusiasm, an emotional message and an audience on the edge of a wilderness seeking all the spiritual comfort possible. The Baptist Church and later the Methodist Church filled that emotional void.

Along with the theology of bibilical literalism came some rules, and these codes of conduct helped settle a violent, hard drinking, rough-necked peoples. Not everyone who was accepted into the Baptist Church stayed. One being Benjamin Greer!

In April 1800, the hero of King's Mountain received a 'hint' that he was going to be called before the Three Forks congregation on the next Sunday to answer the charge of drinking apple juice after it, well, was strongly fermented. These accusations, which may seem tame in the 21st Century, were deadly serious in rural 19th Century communities. Social ostacism could be the consequence if one was found in moral error by the church deacons.

Interesting, this bit of family history (which comes again from A History of Watauga County by John Preston Arthur) indicates there must have been a rupture in the family. Remember the Wilcoxsons - John and Sara Boone Wilcoxson who helped other Boones and Wilcoxson's found Kentucky?

The charge against Benjamin Greer was brought by 'Brother and Sister Wilcoxen'. Were these in-laws of Ben? They just might have been. How did Benjamin handle this situation?

He did not 'take the hint' and never showed up for the meeting, and in fact, he left this particular church. When next we hear of this dynamic character (who probably drank his apple juice until his dying day), he is living in Kentucky with a daughter.

Go to link http://www.fmoran.com/wilkes/threef.html and learn more about the trials and tribulations of this early frontier church and its people. 

In our next post, we will study Ben's will...and consider his full life.
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Capt. Benjamin Greer Saves Col. Benjamin Cleveland from a Tory Patrol!


During the years 1775 to 1781, not all Americans were in revolt against Great Britain.  Those who remained faithful to the Crown were called Tories, and they numbered perhaps 1/3rd of the colonial population.  In the frontier mountains of Western North Carolina, Southwest Virginia and the new land of Kentucky, law and order suffered, and numerous families grouped together according to their loyalties.


With the Patriot victory at King's Mountain and the gradual weakening of Lord Cornwallis's regular British Army, the tide of success began to move quickly away from Tory sympathizers.  However, notorious quasi-outlaw Tory bands still roamed the highlands of the Carolinas.  One group was led by William Riddle, and in the spring of 1781, he and his men kidnapped one of the heroes of King's Mountain, Col. Benjamin Cleveland, Capt. Benjamin Greer's commanding officer.


 In addition to leading men to victory at King's Mountain and against Cherokee Indians, Cleveland had executed several Tories, without benefit of trial. That was a controversial act even for the frontier, and Cleveland only by a slim margin dodged imprisonment or worse.  Revenge of a sort came when Riddle and his men captured Cleveland.  An alarm went up over the mountains of Wilkes County, now Watauga County, North Carolina.  Among those who rushed to Cleveland's aid was our ancestor, Benjamin Greer.


Below a 19th Century photo of the mountain terrain where Benjamin Greer rescued Benjamin Cleveland, and according to one source, dispatched the Tory Riddle to his glory!
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John Preston Arthur in his 1915 work A History of Watauga County recounts that on April 22, 1781, Riddle and a gang of six to eight men bodily snatched Cleveland from a neighbor's home.  In pursuit, Ben Greer and a few associates, including one Samuel McQueen who had fought with Greer in East Tennessee against Indians the year before, ambushed Riddle at the mouth of Elk Creek at a fork on the New River in what is now Watauga County.  At the Wolf's Den, Benjamin Greer is alleged to have shot and killed Riddle. 

Another tale (and the one officially recognized by Wilkes County historians) is that a wounded Riddle was transported to what is now Wilkesboro, North Carolina and was hung with several others.  The 'hanging' oak stood for years, and today, a plaque recognizes the spot.

My generation's 5th great grandfather experienced one adventuresome year from the summer of 1780 to the spring of 1781.  Later that October, Cornwallis surrendered to George Washington at Yorktown, Virginia, and the frontier people settled down to have an abundance of babies.  Benjamin Greer's life has another tale to tell before we bid him adieu.


Next post, Ben Greer and the Baptist Church....
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The Life of Jesse Greer, Sr. and his Wife, Mary Morris Greer


Jesse Greer, Sr. saw the light of day in 1778 in Ashe County, North Carolina two years before his father, Benjamin, fought the Cherokee and Tories in the American Revolution.  His grandfather,John Greer, born in the tidewater of the Maryland Chesapeake, died in 1782 in the mountains of Western North Carolina.  In these mountains, Jesse Sr. would live until death in 1869, passing away after the Civil War had claimed the lives of several of his descendants. Jesse Sr. is buried in Howell Cemetery in Todd, North Carolina.


As we move closer to our own time, more than just legal documents have become available.  Some of what follows is from a fragment of a diary Jesse kept and which was preserved by a great grandson.  I have a copy of this abbreviated journal, about 16 pages, which are difficult to read, which also lists the off spring of Mary and Jesse. (see below)


In addition, the Appalachian State University Press's publication Neighbor to Neighbor (2007) is a gold mine of Greer, Wilson and Osborn material.  Also, anyone exploring the lives of our family would do well to spend time in the Center for Appalachian Studies in Boone, North Carolina.  To their archives, in 2010 I donated the Diary of Frances Wilson Osborne which she kept from 1912 - 1940.


By Jesse, Sr.'s own admission he must have been a difficult child.  He was one of ten children by Benjamin's first wife, Nancy Wilcoxson Greer.  At age 12, his mother died, and at age 13 his father remarried and started a second group of children.  Also step-children became part of what must have been a very crowded home.  By age, 16, Jesse had had enough and left home.  He wrote (see below), 'At age 16 years old, I left my parents much against their will..."


                                              A facsimile of "A Smawl Travil of Jesse Grear" 
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Jesse Greer Sr.'s story captures much of the essence of the mountain culture of the early 1800s, so I shall divide it into several postings.  The next post will tell the story of his amazing elopement with Mary Morris, my generation's 4th great grandmother, and later, his religious conversion which he recorded in some detail in his 'Small Travail".


Jesse Greer, Sr. (1778 - 1869) in his 91 years lived from the Revolutionary War through the Civil War to the time of Reconstruction of the Southern States....
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The Family and Will of Benjamin Greer


At the age of 70, Benjamin Greer died October 23, 1816 in Green County, Kentucky.  He had moved to Kentucky in 1810 with his second wife.  Another source suggests he sold his land in Ashe County, North Carolina - formally Wilkes County - (where Gap Creek enters the South Fork of the New River) in 1803 and may have moved at that time.


 He had married twice, first to Nancy Wilcoxson, my generation's 5th great grandmother and later to Sallie Atkinson Jones.  By Nancy Wilcoxson Greer (a niece of Daniel Boone) were born ten children, one being Jesse Greer, Sr, my 4th great grandfather, whom we will discuss in later articles.  


In 1955 on the lawn of Geraldine Stansbery Holliman's home in Johnson City, Tennessee gathered numerous descendants of Benjamin and Jesse Greer, Sr. through theFrankie Wilson Osborne (1851 - 1940) line.  Frankie's mother,Caroline Wilson Greer, had been a great great granddaughter of Jesse Greer, Sr. (1778 - 1896).  Left to right are:  Louise Stansbery Sherwood (1915 - 2006), Rebecca Holliman Payne (1950), Geraldine Stansbery Holliman (1923), Pauline Osborne Smith, Pearl Osborne Wright (1890 - 1980) and her husband David Wright (d 1962).  At the time of photograph, Louise lived in Knoxville, Tennessee, Pearl and David in Damascus, Virginia, and Pauline in Washington State where she had moved with her father, Toby Osborne in 1924.  Toby was a brother of Pearl and uncle of Louise and Geraldine.  The mountain in the background is the Buffalo, 50 or so miles west of the mountains of Wilkes and Watauga Counties, North Carolina were the Greer families lived in the 18th Century.
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My 5th great grandmother, Nancy Wilcoxson Greer, had been born May 17, 1745, and died October 31, 1790, at the age of 45.  The children Benjamin and she had were:


Rachel Greer (sometimes spelled Grear) - b 1/16/1770
William Greer -  b 1/21, 1772  
Benjamin Greer - b 2/14/1774
Anna Greer - b 4/26/1776
Jesse Greer, Sr. -  11/14/1778 - 9/20/1869 ( my generation's 4th great grandfather)
David Greer - 2/2/1781
James Greer - 9/17/1783
Samuel Greer - 11/28/1785
Joshua Greer - 4/8/1788
John Greer - birth date unknown


A Wilkes County marriage bond in the State Archives in Raleigh, NC, dated 4/26/1791 lists Benjamin Greer and Sarah Jones as married.  This would be Mrs. Sallie Atkinson Jones, widow of Thomas Jones who died from a Revolutionary War wound.  She reared children by both husbands.


By widow Sallie, five children were fathered by Benjamin Greer.  They were:


Edmund Greer
Sally Greer
Elizabeth Greer
Mary Polly Greer
Aquilla Greer - b 1797


This son of the Wild Frontier fathered 15 children by two wives!  No wonder the population of the new young country was doubling every twenty years.  One can understand how the population of Kentucky went from a handful of settlers (many our family members) in 1780 to over 400,000 in 1810! Kentucky became a state in 1792, the first state to be admitted to the Union after the original 13.  

In his will, Benjamin left two tracts of land equally divided between Aquilla and Edmond Greer, and the rest of his estate between his three daughters - Sally, Elizabeth and Polly Greer, after the death of their mother, Sarah Greer.  To the children of the first marriage, presumably further along in life financially, he left $1 each to John, Rachel, William, Benjamin, Anne, Jesse, David, Samuel, Joshua and James.  Witnesses were Benjamin Bayly, Christopher Hinker and James Lile.

Note please that Benjamin, ever the yeoman farmer, left no slaves.  Kentucky may have gone from frontier to plantation is a generation, but the majority of settlers were small to medium farmers growing corn, hogs, cattle and a cash crop such as tobacco.  The Shawnee Indians were gone (as was most of their wild game), replaced by European and African Americans.

Benjamin had a long life, born in 1746 in Virginia when George II was on the throne of England.  In 1816, the President of the United States, a republic that Ben helped found, was a fellow Virginian, James Madison.

Adieu Benjamin, my generation's 5th great grandfather who helped found the United States and settled the Appalachian frontier!


Information for the above article from John Preston Arthur's A History of Watauga County and the notebook of the Jesse Greer Family, copy provided by the defunct Watauga Genealogical Society.  Also copies in Appalachian State University Archives and in Karen Worley's Genealogy Database on the web.


Next posting, Jesse Greer, Sr. and Mary Morris Greer...an amazing love story....
When We Were Greers XXV
by Glenn N. Holliman

Jesse Greer, Sr's. Great Awakening
Gordon A. Wood in his epic Empire of Liberty (see below) describes in vibrant terms the Second Great Awakening, an evangelical Protestant religious revival that swept the American frontier and rural areas of the new country in the early 1800s.
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The radical expansion of religious fervor 'transformed the entire religious culture of American and laid the foundations for the development of an evangelical religious world of competing denominations unique to Christendom.'  There were few trained clergy to minister to the yearnings of religiously 'under fed' men and women.  The Baptists and the Methodists became effective in reaching out extravagantly and emotionally to persons offering solace, reassurance and God's forgiveness of sins.  The Cane Ridge, Kentucky summer revival in which 15,000 to 20,000 persons gathered for several weeks in 1801 is the most famous and perhaps earliest of revivals that were reproduced thousands of times, even to this generation in parts of America.

Heat, noise, confusion, and exhortations of preaching by a dozen ministers at the same time led to an 'intoxication' of the spirits, with holy dances, shouting, and the 'jerks'.  Critics have said more souls were made in the evening shadows of the camp revival than were saved.  Be that as it may, Cane Ridge immediately 'became the symbol of the promises and extravagance of the new kind of Evangelical Protestantism spreading through out the west.'
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                            Above an 1819 Methodist camp meeting. In the middle 1850s in  Sutherland, North Carolina, Isaac and Caroline Greer Wilson would convert to Methodist as a result of a revival of this type in the Western North Carolina mountains.  Caroline Greer Wilson is a grand daughter of Jesse Greer, Sr.  Engraving reproduction for educational purposes only.


No doubt, the new religion offered a steadying influence to a rough and often physically violent society.  Whether tucked in the hollows of Watauga County, North Carolina, the blue grass of Kentucky or in the Tennessee Valley, church communities stood for morality (although perhaps thought excessive in the 21st Century such as' not wearing extravagant clothing or working on Sunday'.  Excessive alcohol consumption was a major problem in early 19th Century America with subsequent child and spouse abuse.  Later church denominations would bring to the Southwest academies, seminaries and colleges, all to the good for an ill-educated, often socially and culturally isolated peoples.

Jesse Greer, Sr. (1778 - 1869) responded to this religious call, but he did not rush to 'redemption' as his own words so indicate.  In our next posting, we will read his 'testimony' as copied by Jesse's son, Jesse Greer, Jr. (1806 - 1892), my 3rd great grandfather.

Next Posting, Jesse's Confession of Faith....
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Mary 'Polly' Morris (1787 - 1880), The Ancestress of the Family!

This was an amazing prolific family.  By the time Polly Greer (my generation's 4th great grandmother) died, she gave birth to 17 children who in turn produced 100 grandchildren, 250 great grandchildren and as many as 300 great great grandchildren by the time of her death!


One of her great grandson's, The Rev. William A. Wilson, has left us with a list of the 17 children and their date of birth.   Mary was born September 17, 1787, the summer the U.S. Constitution had been written in Philadelphia, a year and a half before George Washington became the first President.  She died February 29, 1880 with the 19th President, Rutherford B. Hayes in the White House.


At the age of 13 1/2 Polly married Jesse Greer Sr. on January 17, 1800.  The babies came often until she was 43 years of age.  Imagine, 30 years, usually pregnant!


Fannie Greer - Jan. 24, 1801 (The President of the U.S. was John Adams)
Benjamin Greer - Nov. 9, 1802 (The President of the U.S. was Thomas Jefferson)
Joshua Greer - Dec. 18, 1803
Nancy Greer - Feb. 21, 1805
Jesse Greer, Jr - Dec. 16, 1806 (this is my generation's 3rd great grandfather)
Polly Greer - June 9, 1808
Sallie Greer - Nov 4, 1810 (The President of the U.S. was James Madison)
Jennie Greer - Oct. 8, 1812
Betsy Greer - Nov. 17, 1814 (The White House was burned by the British)
Joseph Greer - Dec. 13, 1815 (The War of 1812 ended)
Andrew Greer - April 14, 1818 (The President of the U.S. was James Monroe)
Synthia Greer - Oct. 1, 1819
Franklin Greer - Feb. 22, 1822
Isaac Greer - Oct. 14, 1823
William Greer Greer - Jan. 1825
James Y. Greer - August 14, 1827 (The President of the U.S. was John Q. Adams)
Elvira Greer - Feb. 16, 1830 (The President of the U.S. was Andrew Jackson)

Below in the 1950s are two of Jesse and Polly Greer's thousands of descendants: Bascomb Osborne and his daughter, Gladys Osborne Adema.
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7/2/11
When We Were Greers XXIII
by Glenn N. Holliman

Jesse Greer Sr. Elopes with his Child Bride, Mary Morris!


This is a stunning story of a 13 1/2 year old girl, Mary Morris, who grew up on the Yadkin River near Wilkesboro, North Carolina, disobeyed her father, my generation's 5th great grandfather, Henry Morris, and ran off with 22 year old Jesse Greer, Sr!  Jesse had grown up along the South Fork of the New River in what became Ashe County, North Carolina.  Jesse lived on one side of what is now the Blue Ridge Parkway, and Mary on the east side.

This event happened in 1801.  If it had happened in 2001, young Jesse would have been charged with statutory rape, kidnapping and who knows what else.  After 10 to 15 years in the state penitentiary, branded a pedophile, he would have spent the rest of his life on the sexual predators list!

Fortunately for our DNA, Jesse and Mary had very successful marriage.  Their great grandson (and brother of Frances Wilson Osborne), The Rev. William A. Wilson, in the 1940s recorded the story which had passed along as family oral history.  From p. 109 - 110 of Neighbor to Neighbor, I quote verbatim the story as I cannot improve on this tale written by my 2nd great uncle!


"Polly Morris's father objected to the marriage on the grounds that Polly was too young.  However, Morris allowed Greer and his daughter to talk matters over and during the time allotted they planned an elopement.


Old man Morris (Henry Morris whose wife was named Mary also) was good enough to ferry young Greer to the Western bank of the Yadkin.  Polly Morris appeared little disappointed and went about her work cheerfully.  Later in the afternoon, as planned, Polly Morris went down to the river bank and young Greer, carrying his gun in one hand, waded the river on stilts and when he reached the bank where she stood he took her on his back and waded back to the safe side.  They walked some distance to the home of an acquaintance of Greer's and told them they were hurrying to Ashe County where they would get married.


They crossed the Blue Ridge at Gap Creek which was only four miles from the Greer home at Old Fields.  Elijah Calloway was magistrate at Old Fields and Jesse Greer and Polly Morris were married by him. Calloway, as had Benjamin Greer, Jesse Greer's Sr's father, had married a Wilcoxson, daughter of John and Sarah Wilcoxson.  So Callway was his uncle.  Sarah Wilcoxson was before her marriage, Sarah Boone, daughter of Squire Boone, father of Daniel Boone."

[image: https://lh4.googleusercontent.com/-a8iDD7vuCns/TYzERXt-5ZI/AAAAAAAACKw/_QyecRXxgYE/s400/1864+Map+of+Greer+land+.jpg]

On the map above, note Baldwin in the center right near the edge of the map, marked in yellow. Near here Jesse and Mary crossed the Blue Ridge from the east, Wilkesboro, North Carolina (off the map).  They were married by his uncle in the area marked in yellow under the large 'D', far center edge of map. Just to the south west of Baldwin, at Todd on the Ashe and Watauga County line, Jesse and Mary are buried together at the Howell Cemetery. To get your bearings, note Boone, North Carolina in center, toward the bottom of the map.  Again in yellow. Double click the map to enlarge.

This young couple had 17 children one being Jesse Jr., my generation's third great grandfather. Benjamin Greer had 15 children.  Greers live all over North Carolina, East Tennessee and Kentucky to this day!
When We Were Greers, Part XI
by Glenn N. Holliman The Greers Move Through the Great Valley of Virginia to Relocate in North Carolina Both my generation's 7 th and 6 ...
· [image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/_onotc7qbTJk/TIQI-_cRrKI/AAAAAAAABLU/3rw3whDa_5Q/s72-c/Ademas+August+2010.jpg]
More Adema and Stansbery Photographs, No. 9
by Glenn N. Holliman 2010 Rob Adema took this photograph of his parents, Gay and Bob Adema along with yours truly (far left) at their s...

8/27/11
When We Were Greers, Part XXVII
Searching for our Scottish Roots
by Glenn N. Holliman

In June 2011, my wife Barb and I ventured to the Lockerbie and Dumfries areas of Scotland searching for the homesites of myGrierson (Greer) family.  As readers of this blog know, I have been writing about the Greers for some time.  This was a spirited family in North Carolina and a spirited one in Scotland!
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In the Lockerbie Cemetery, there stands in the background a monument site to those who died in the Pan Am terriorist bombing of 1989.  In the foreground is a gravestone of a Margaret Grierson.  The family Grierson appeared in the lowlands of Scotland, north of Carlisle, England in the early 1400s according to my reading. 


Below is a Maxwell monument (gravestones in the 19th Century Scotland were generally 4 to 5 feet tall for those who could afford them) who was married to a Johnston.  What do these names have to do with the Griersons?  My generation's 10th great grandfather married a Maxwell (my 10th great grandparents) and fought the Johnstone family at the Battle of Dryfe Sands in 1593.  Obviously, by the early 1900s, the Maxwells and Johnstons, earlier clan enemies, were mixing their DNAs.

[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/-4jvLW4pbhlQ/TicWHebMY5I/AAAAAAAACdQ/njYX8GFWli8/s320/2011+6-6+Lockerbie+Maxwell+monument.JPG]



[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/-YATbLFI_ffs/TicWziAEtdI/AAAAAAAACdU/xBZmRLER3yE/s320/2011+6-6+Lockerbie+Dryfe+Sands.JPG]
Today it is difficult to imagine that Scottish extended families fought each other for land and cattle.  So weak was the central government that law and order was maintained by clan leaders and their families.  Near Lockerbie and Dumfries in 1593 at the Battle of Dryfe Sands, the Maxwells, assisted by the Griersons, took on the Johnstons.

Hundreds died in this conflict.  If there be anything good about it, the Maxwells and Griersons grew closer and a Maxwell lassie married a Grierson lad, my 10th great grandparents.  The same couple is also Winston Churchill's 9th great grandparents!

This display is at the Lockerbie Heritage Centre at the Cemetery.

Next, on the archival trail of the Griersons and Maxwells....
8/13/11
When We Were Greers XXVI
by Glenn N. Holliman

Jesse Greer, Sr. Makes a Confession of Faith


Jesse, my generation's 4th great grandfather, did not write a book such as St. Augustine's Confessions, but Jesse in a long and laborious paragraph, described his own faith experience.  Sometime in the 19th Century in a school notebook, Jesse Greer, Jr. copied from notes his father had written, Jesse Sr.'s anguished confession of sin and contrition.  What 'sins' this father of 17 children by one wife had to confess, we know little other than his cursing and drinking.  He mentions in passing 'all kinds of sin' which we leave to imagination but suspect they were relatively minor - no murder or horse thieving!


Below copied, with Jesse's imaginative spelling and capitalization intact, is that confession as transcribed by Mary Floy Katzman, and on the web site, A Gathering of Greers.  The original is held by Annie Greer Heaton of Heaton, North Carolina, but I have a copy (see July 16, 2011 post) and a much better one is available at the Center for Appalachian Studies in Boone, North Carolina.  Note that Jesse begins by referring to himself in the 3rd person. Although only one paragraph, to ease our reading, I have broken this into many paragraphs.  


                                            A Smawl travil of Jesse Grear


He was born the son of Benjamine and Nacy Greer in Wilkes County, North Carolina on the 14th November 1778.  then traveled on to the year of maturity under a tender father and mother and at 16 years old I left my Parents much Against their will.  then serving the Devil was all my delight.  till the year 1800, then married Polly Morris which was born a daughter of Henry and Franky Morris on the 17th september 1787. 

then went on in the Gall of Bitteness as tho there was no soul to save or to be lost, til the year 1810, at the Baptism of Brother Bejamin, I Began to think that my soul must dwell with the richman.  then I betook my self to trying to pray for about ten months.  But the Devil pursuaded me it was so hard that I could pray no longer.  But betook myself to cursing and swearing and drinking and all kinds of sin til the year 1814.  

Very Gardless we went to meeting at the Oldfeel (Old Field) meeting house but there was no ministry  Came to preach, but as they thought proper that they should sing and pray one of them began and as I set I saw a small child about twelve or thirteen years old crying as if He would Break her heart.  and it seamed to strike me like a Clap of thunder, to think that God was at work with such small Children and I still in the gall of bitterness then I went  hence trying to pray.  but it oppressed (?) to me that God would not hear my weak pertishion. 

 I soon began to think that I had passed the day of grace and soon betook my self to my friends and to the people of god to see if they could give an Conslation.  but I had to go moving through the wilderness until 1815.  I had been from home and on my return home some hour in the night I thought if I was lost I would  die a praying.  and as I was trying to pray I thought that my Blessed Jesus meet with me and Bid me not fear.  

Then I went home Rejoycing and praising God and I had Been lost But now was found.  and in the time to follow his Companion Got a hope that she had made peace with god and we was Received in to the Baptist Church and was Baptized on the 4th Sunday in June 1815. 
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Above Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick in 2009 stands in front of the latest version of the Sutherland Methodist Church in Ashe County, North Carolina.  Her great grandparents, Isaac and Caroline Greer Wilson, became Methodists during a revival in the 1850s at this church, a few mountain valleys west and in the same county where Geraldine's 3rd grandfather, Jesse Greer, Sr. 'got religion' in 1815.  


Historians report that the Baptist and Methodist Churches grew rapidly during this period, especially in the Southwest (Tennessee, Kentucky and western Virginia).  In this time period, these churches were considered radical, too emotional, too democratic to more established denominations - the Episcopal and Congregational denominations for example.  Yet within a generation, Baptists and Methodists (although both split into numerous factions, especially the Baptists) were main stream, middle America and have remained so to this day.  Many Scotch-Irish remained Presbyterian, and this denomination also grew dynamically during the Second Great Awakening.


Before we go to Jesse Greer, Jr., we will detour back to Scotland and look at some home sites of our Grierson ancestors.  I pause here for two reasons: one I made a recent trip to Scotland and want to record my research while still fresh, and two, the Jesse Greer, Jr. story rolls right into the Civil War and more recent times.  His story and that of his wife, Frankie Brown Greer, and of course, their daughter, Caroline Greer Wilson, is fascinating, suspenseful and courageous in turbulent times.  Their stories are well recorded and worthy of a closer look.  In the first articles on this blog, I devoted several stories to Isaac and Caroline Greer Wilson, my generation's 2nd great grandparents.
 
9/28/11
The Charles S. Stansbery Family
A Lineage of the Stansbery Family through the Life of Charles S. Stansbery (1893 – 1957) and his Immediate Descendants
by Glenn N. Holliman, a Grandson of Charles Stansbery, Sr.

Recently, my Mother, Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick, and I took a sentimental journey back to East Tennessee to visit new and old relatives.  One of the many delights of the trip occurred when we stopped to share lunch with her half sister, Nancy Stansbery Higginbotham, in Greenville, Tennessee.  Joining us for the repast were Charlie and Theresa Higginbotham  and Ron and Sharon Potter and their two daughters, Danielle and Katie.  Both Charlie and Sharon, as do I, share Charles Stansbery, Sr. as our grandfather.
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Left to right are Katie, Ron and Sharon Potter, Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick, Nancy Stansbery Higginbotham, Charlie and Theresa Higginbotham and Danielle Potter in Greenville, Tennessee, September 2011.

As if visiting with Nancy and her family were not exciting enough, one of the associates at the restaurant, Laura Elizabeth Davenport, recognized Nancy and was introduced to us as a great grand daughter of Fred and Flora Stansbery, brother and sister-in-law of Charles Stansbery!  The next day, Laura kindly loaned yours truly old family photos that I shall be using in future articles.

I promised Laura a copy of the Stansbery family tree, so below it begins, drawn from multiple sources.  We are a well documented family.

The family name Stansbery is spelled many different ways. Most common are Stansbery, Stansbery, Stanbourough and Stansbury. The word means stone or tin fort. Many genealogists place the origin of the family in Cornwall and Devonshire, England, an area of numerous tin mines from Roman times. In 1994, during a trip to England, my wife and I stayed at a B & B run by, yes, Charles Stansbury!

This document begins in 1628 and carries through to 2009. The numbers is front of many of the names indicate the number of generations in the New World. B and D (b and d) mean birth and death, of course. W (w) and H (h) mean wife and husband. M (m) means married.  Errors are mine alone; additions and corrections welcome.  All Stansberys out there, please let me hear from you.

Part I


Prior to the New World – 
 Our Stansbery story begins in the 17th century...

March 26, 1628 1 Detmar Sternberg b in Sankt Marien Evangelisch, Dortmund, Westfalen, Preussen. Father -1 Dethmarus Sternberg and Mother Cathrina Morske. Detmar's grandfather said to have been an English earl who fled England to Holland as a Puritan. Changed name from Stansbury to Sternberg to sound more Dutch. Grandfather may have married one of daughters of William I of Orange (William the Silent) who organized Dutch revolt against Spanish rule.

Catherine Renske, w of 1 Detmar Sternberg b 1632 circa in Holland or Germany.

To the New World -

1 Detmar and Catherine Renske, and 6 yr. old son 2 Tobias immigrate in 1658 to Baltimore Co., MD and name changed back to Stansbury. Tobias b 1652 in Netherlands. Detmar & Catherine m 1651.Sarah Raven, later wife of Tobias, b circa 1650 in Gloucester Co., VA. Father Luke Raven and mother Elizabeth Hughes.

Sarah Raven and 2 Tobias Starnborough m 1677 circa. Have 5 children.

1 Detmar Sternberg d after 1682. 2 Tobias Starnborough a grand jury member in Baltimore Co, MD 1683-84. 3 Samuel A. Stansbury b circa 1693 to Tobias and Sarah Raven in Baltimore, Co.

2 Tobias Starnborough a ranger under Capt. John Oldton. Rangers patrol the outlying districts as protection against Indians. From this activity Tobias gained tracts of Land.

2 Tobias Starnborough d 4/23/1708/09, Baltimore Co, MD.

3 Samuel Stansbury has 100 acres on the s side of Great Falls of Gunpowder River in Baltimore Co, MD.

3 Samuel A. Stansbury and Mary Porter Harrod??, b unknown. m. unknown, ca 1720? 

4 Samuel Stansbury, Jr. b 1731 ca, son of 3 Samuel A. Stansbury.

4 Samuel Stansbury m Mary Andrews Baxter (Harrod) ?? before 1749.

5 Luke Stansbery b 3/6/1750, Baltimore Co, MD, son of 4 Samuel (b 1731) and Mary Andrews Baxter Stansbury. 4 Samuel would marry twice, second to Mary Harrod 4/1/1761 in St. John’s Parish, Baltimore Co, MD. 

Nancy Haddox Stansbery b 1764, NC.

4 Samuel Stansbury d 8/5/1778. 5 Luke Stansbery taken prisoner at capture of Charleston, SC by British. Held one year, escaped and rejoined NC Continental Army. Enlisted in Caswell Co, NC 1/17/1778, serving under Capt. Reading Bunt and Col. Robert Nebane. 3 Samuel A. Stansbury d 4/1783 in Caswell Co, NC. Second wife Mary Anne Culleson. 

5 Luke and Nancy Haddox Stansbery m 1/30/1791. Would have 7 children; 6 Solomon being the last.

6 Solomon Stansbery b 1804, Caswell Co, NC. Child of Luke and Nancy Stansbery. Frances 'Fanny' Gibson b 1809 circa SC.

6 Solomon and Fanny Gibson Stansbery m 1/12/1827.

7 Pryor Lee Stansbery, child of 6 Solomon & Fanny Stansbery b 3/16/1832 in GA. Eliza Baxter Hines, wife to be of Pryor Lee Stansbery b 6/11/1834 Knox Co, TN. 7 Another son of Solomon and Fannie was The Rev. J.M. Stansberry. He began preaching around 1850. Rt to E. TN & ordained New Hopewell Baptist Church in E. Tenn in April 1853. Left TN on account of political troubles in 1860 and assumed church at Dalton, GA, which he retained until church shattered by the war. M. Mollie Johnson of Knox Cty, TN Sept 1856 and after her death 2/1873 m Matie Kead of Whitefield Co, GA.

5 Luke Stansbery, Revolutionary War veteran, d. Knox Co, TN 10/13/1848. Buried New Hopewell Baptist Cemetery, Kimberlin Heights, Knox Co. TN.

7 Pryor Lee Stansbery m Eliza Baxter Hines Stansbery 9/161852 (another source repts marriage 9/16/1860). Nancy Haddox Stansbery d Knox Co, TN 7/29/1854. 6 Solomon Stansbury in 1850 census lived in E Chickamauga, Walker Co, GA, occupation a mill Wright with property of $1,000. Wife, Frances Stansbury.

8 William Luther Stansbery, son of 7 Pryor Lee and Eliza Stansbery b 4/29/1861 Hopewill, Knox Co, TN. Wife Annie Eliza McCray b 12/20/1863 at Jonesboro or Limestone, TN. In 1860 census, 6 Solomon Stansbury listed as mill wright in Knox Co, TN, age 55, real estate value of $500, b. NC. Parents of 12 children. 7 One Pryor L. Stansbery enlisted in TN Union 9th Cavalry Regiment. Two brothers enlisted in the Confederacy and three in addition to Pryor joined the Union Army. It was truly a war of brother against brother.

6 Solomon Stansbery d Knox Co, TN 1877. Wife Fanny Stansbery d Knox Co, TN.

7 Pryor Lee Stansbery d 11/18/1896 Knox Co., TN. 9 Charles Skelt Stansbery, Sr. b 12/5/1893 Afton, TN. Mayme Osborne b 1/16/1896.

Eliza Baxter Hines Stansbery d Afton, TN 4/19/1906.

9 Charles S. Stansbery, Sr. m Mayme Tarence Osborne 4/29/1914. 10 Frances Louise Stansbery b Afton, TN 1/27/1916. 10 Charles Skelt Stansbery b Afton, TN 6/15/1918. 

10 Patricia Geraldine Stansbery b 11/16/1923 Bristol, TN, daughter of 9 Charles and Mayme Osborne Stansbery.

Annie Eliza McCray Stansbery d Afton, TN 1/11, 1936 when dress caught fire from fireplace, wife of 8 William Luther Stansbery. Mayme Osborne Stansbery marriage dissolved with 9 Charles Stansbery; she files papers September 1933. Charles remarries Lucy Lee Barkley c 1935 and becomes father of additional daughters, 10 Nancy Stansbery Higginbotham, b 1940 Afton, TN and 10 Jean Stansbery Dobbs, b 1944, d 1999. 

8 William Luther Stansbery d 4/9/1942 Afton, TN. Mayme Osborne Stansbery d 11/1943 Philadelphia, PA. Buried Bristol, TN. 'Frankie' Wilson Osborne d 11/1940, Bristol, TN.

9 Charles S. Stansbery, father of 10 Louise Stansbery Sherwood, 10 Charles Stansbery, 10 Geraldine Stansbery Holliman, 10 Nancy Stansbery Higginbotham and 10 Jean Stansbery Dobbs d 11/19/1957 Afton, TN of natural causes, a retired farmer.

9 Charles S. Stansbery Sr's second wife, Lucy Lee Barkley Stansbery, dies June 25, 1978. Buried on Stone Dam Road in Methodist Church cemetery next to Charles Sr.

10 Jean Stansbery Dobbs dies Sept. 9, 1999. B 1944.

10 Charles S. Stansbery d 11/14/2006 Greeley, CO near daughter 11 Susan Mackenzie. Buried Black Hills National Cemetery at Sturgis, SD. 10 Frances Louise Stansbery Sherwood d 2006. Buried Maryville, TN. One son,11 Vance Sherwood, b 12/7/1946, Knoxville, TN. Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick visits Nancy Stansbery Higginbotham, half sisters, July 2009. 11 Glenn Holliman, 11 Becky Holliman Payne, and 12 Sean Murphy (age 20) on this trip to visit surviving family and grave sites.
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Above in 2009 at Stone Dam Road Methodist Church cemetery in Afton, Tennessee are Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick, her half sister, Nancy Stansbery Higginbotham, Rebecca Holliman Payne and the writer, Glenn Holliman.

More later on the Stansberys and other associated families....
9/17/11
When We Were Greers, Part XXIX
Searching for the Griersons of Scotland
by Glenn N. Holliman

In June 2011, I spent a day visiting archives and libraries in Dumfries, Scotland researching the history of the area and the Grierson and Maxwell families.  One place I sought out was the Dumfries Centre (see photo below).  There and at the local history room of the city library, I gathered more information on our once-prominent families.
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No, the below photo is the Archives building.  Note the arrow behind the lamp post which points across the street to the Robert Burn's domicile.  It is difficult to see.
[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/-72DMDuyr34A/TjGujpmz7RI/AAAAAAAACfU/4rV39uMxhS4/s320/2011+6-7+Dumfries+Archives.JPG]

Yes, Robert Burns, the famous Scottish poet lived across from the archives in this building.  He was an excise tax collector until his early death due to heart disease.  He died in 1791, age 37, and alas, is no relation to our Scottish ancestors.  Althought, ahem, he did father several children out of wedlock....interesting fellow.
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Below, just down the street is St. Michael's Church where Robert Burns is buried.  A statue of his long suffering wife, Jean Armour,  stands on the corner facing the rust colored edifice.  She bore him nine children.[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/-6s44Xx330CE/TjG9q6yBTxI/AAAAAAAACfo/GK63wxQw6Ac/s400/2011%2B6-7%2BDumfries%252C%2BSt.%2BMichael%2527s%2BChurch%252C%2BBurn%2527s%2Bgrave.JPG]

When you read the poetry of Robert Burns you are reading a time when our ancestors lived in the lowlands of Scotland! 

Next, again on the trail of James Grierson of Scotland and Maryland....
POSTED BY GLENN N. HOLLIMAN AT 2:43 AM 0 COMMENTS [image: http://img2.blogblog.com/img/icon18_edit_allbkg.gif] 
LABELS: ROBERT BURNS
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When We Were Greers, Part XXVIII
Searching for our Scottish Roots
by Glenn N. Holliman

No, I am not doing a Fed Ex commercial; the truck rolled by as I snapped this picture from my car window in June 2011.  I had just left the Dumfries Heritage Center in Scotland, the building to the left of the truck.  I was on the trail of anything I could find about the Grierson and Maxwell families.  
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Inside the centre, several young ladies (photo below) assisted me.  The one the left, Joan Stoddard, told me stories of the Convenanter Controversy (a mild term for a religious war) of the middle to late 1600s.  Numerous anti-Anglican Griersons were captured and transported to Maryland in 1677.

Many Scottish nationalists and Presbyterians objected to being forced to worship according to Anglican Church ritual.  Charles Stuart II had been restored to the throne and, though being born to a Scottish family, he also carried the low I.Q. of the family.  He insisted on quasi-Catholic worship practices. 

Enough Scots revolted at this that intermittent religious wars, especially in the Dumfries area, continued for several decades.  It got nasty and numerous persons died for religious reasons, all Christians. Seems very strange today.
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Did James Grierson, my 8th great grand father, suffer from this war and was he transported to Maryland as a result?  Let's keep exploring the area and see what more can be found.
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10/14/11
The Charles S. Stansbery Family
A Lineage of the Stansbery Family through the Life of Charles S. Stansbery (1893 – 1957) and his Immediate Descendants
by Glenn N. Holliman, a Grandson of Charles Stansbery, Sr.

Recently I published a lineage and photographs of my grandfather's family, after my Mother, Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick, and I visited relatives in a delightful weekend in East Tennessee and Southern Virginia.  In this posting, I continue to provide research on our family tree branch, and invite other Stansberys to contact and share information. 


Part II

The Parents, Brothers and Sisters of Charles Skelt Stansbery Sr. (1893 – 1957)

Parents: William Luther Stansbery (4/29,1861 at Hopewell, Knox County, TN - 4/9/1943 in Afton, TN). Annie Eliza McCray Stansbery (12/20/1863 at Jonesboro, TN - 1/11/1936), m. 1/1/1884. Annie died when her night gown ignited as she stood next to an open fireplace in her home.

William's father was Pryor Lee Stansbery, an Union Civil War veteran. An earlier grandfather was a N.C. Revolutionary War veteran, Luke Stansbery, incarcerated by the British in Charleston, SC in 1780. The Stansberys immigrated to Maryland in the 1660s after several generations in the Netherlands. Originally from England, probably Devonshire. (Note: My first wife and mother of my children, Lynn Draper Armstrong (5/28/1946) and this writer share a common great-great grandfather, Pryor Lee Stansbery who is buried at the New Hope Baptist Cemetery in Knoxville, TN.)

Children of William Luther and Annie McCray Stansbery

Margaret Edith Stansbery (10/15/1884 - 10/26/1954) in Bristol, VA. Married Roe Williams, 5/19/1907. One son, J.C. Williams.

George Lee Stansbery (11/14/1886 - 9/25/1965 in Jefferson City, TN.) M. Annie Lee Stansbery 12/20/1906, one son and two girls.

James Arthur Stansbery (12/19/1888 - 6/14/1969 in Virginia). M. Nellie Homes 3/4/1914.

Fred Walker Stansbery (5/9/1891 - 5/27/1969 in Greenville, TN). M. Flora Eunice Dennis (11/11/1891 in Bristol, VA.) M. 9/10/1913. Additional lineage added courtesy of Laura Davenport of Greenville, Tennessee September 2011. Laura is the daughter of Mike Davenport who is the son of Doris and Carl Davenport. Doris is the daughter of Fred and Flora Stansbery.

Charles Skelt Stansbery Sr. (12/5/1893 - 11/19/1957 in Afton, TN). M. Mayme Tarrence Osborne 4/29/1914 and who died 12/3/1943 in Philadelphia, PA of a abdominal infection. Buried in East Hill Cemetery, Bristol, TN. The couple divorced in 1933. Charles is buried in Afton, TN in the Stone Dam Road Methodist Church cemetery with his second wife, Lucy Lee Barkley Stansbery and daughter Jean Stansbery Dobbs. Charles Stansbery is this writer's grandfather.

William Cecil Stansbery (12/15/1896 0 d. ?). Was a doctor in Cleveland, TN. M. Etta Mayers Henley, 9/20/1925. They had one son, a dentist and one daughter.

Harry Price Stansbery (12/14/1899 - D ?). Lived in Georgia as of 1981. M. Zola Rymer 6/18/1924.

Selma R. Stansbery (4/10/1902 and died two days later.)

Eva Kate Stansbery (9/10/1903 - 1979 or 1980 in Afton, TN). M. Guy Williamson 14/14/1922, one son Guy, Jr.
[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/-C7dBenhu8Cg/ToNdQrXV2ZI/AAAAAAAACps/lgsKscYTAH4/s400/1953+Stansbery+children+of+Luther+Stansbery.jpg]
Left to right, the children of William Luther and Ann McCray Stansbery, Afton, Tennessee, spring 1953: Maggie Stansbery Williams (Mrs. Roe Williams) of Bristol, VA; George Stansbery of Jefferson City, Tennessee;  Arthur ‘Pete’ Stansbery of  Virginia; Fred Stansbery of Greenville, Tennessee; Charles S. Stansbery of Afton, Tennessee; Cecil Stansbery of Cleveland, Tennessee, Harry Stansbery of Georgia and Eva Stansbery Williamson (Mrs. Guy Williamson) of Afton, Tennessee.

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/-Eya1E3StcvI/ToNn7Q1RAJI/AAAAAAAACqA/NRadBq5CoGk/s320/1924+2+001+-+Copy+%25282%2529.jpg]
The year is approximately 1921 in Bristol, Tennessee with Charles Stansbery, Sr. playing with puppies. His daughter, Louise Stansbery Sherwood (1914 – 2006), pats one of them.

Later, more on the Stansbery families....




10/4/11
When We Were Greers, Part XXX
by Glenn N. Holliman

To Capenoch, the Home of my 8th Great Grandfather

Approximately 20 miles north of Dumfries and five miles west of Thornhill, Scotland is the stately manor home of the Gladstone family.  Prior to their purchase of this hill top home near Pen point, a nearby village, another dwelling, one hundred or so yards further up the property, was the birthplace of James Grierson, born ca 1627 who in 1674 emigrated to Maryland.  The former house, long since destroyed, served as the site of a prominent family in the area, a branch of the Griersons, one of whom served as the Lord of Lag.
[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/-EHGv8wFjOt8/TjG_LM8VyPI/AAAAAAAACfs/8zX13nURs1Q/s320/2011+6-8+Cape+Noch+house+2.JPG]
   
James Grier(son) married Anne Taylor in 1680 and fathered John Greer, Sr. before dying in 1688 along the Gunpowder River, Baltimore County, Maryland.  According to Donald Whyte, who in 1972 published Emigrants to the USA, James was transported as an indentured servant by Samuell Gibbons of Bristol, and arrived in Maryland in November 1674. 

The same information is carried also in  A History of the Origin of the Above Families (Greer) and Many of Their Descendants, 1954 by Robert M. Torrence, Baltimore, MD.  James was one of a number of children of Sir James of the Rock, born 1604.  Why one of his children ended an indentured servant must be a story into itself, and one we can see only through the fog of centuries.  Sir James of the Rock was my generation's 9th great grandmother and more on  him and others in another post.



[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/-kMN7LxAAEOE/TjHBpceI0MI/AAAAAAAACfw/gzGOP8JlIS4/s320/2011+6-8+Capenoch+House+detail.JPG]
 Above a detail of the Gladstone family seal on an exterior wall of the current Capenoch edifice.  Several generations of my Grierson grandfathers called this property their home in the 1600s.  These photographs were taken in June 2011.


We continue to explore Scotland and our family in the next post....
When We Were Greers XXXI
By Glenn N. Holliman

The Parents and Grandparents of James Grierson, our Maryland Ancestor


Below is the parish church at Glencairn, north of Dunscore and Dumfries, Scotland, and located not far from Cape Noch.  Numerous Griersons and Maxwells are buried here. Our interest in the Scottish place of worship results because one of my generation's 10th great grandfathers was the clergy here in the late 1500s and early 1600s.  His name was The Rev. John Browneand  his wife's name was Sara Hope. John Browne held an M.A. and was the first pastor at the parish after the Protestant Reformation, hence he could be married.

Bear in mind, Elizabeth I is on the throne of England, and Mary, Queen of the Scots, had been deposed by her nobles due to her erratic love life and Roman Catholic beliefs.  In 1603, the year before my generation's
9th great grandparents were born, Elizabeth died and James VI of Scotland became James I of England.

 In 1604, John and Sara Browne had a daughter, Mary Browne, who in 1625 had a short marriage to Thomas Greer .  However, Thomas died young, and in 1625, Mary married for a second time, in this case to a cousin of her first husband.
[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/-sepOvt8-uhQ/TjKgFSzvckI/AAAAAAAACgE/9vUjrDAjSA8/s320/2011+6-8+Glencairn+parish+cemetery.JPG]
Photos for this series taken June 2011.


This new husband, who is my generation's 9th great grandfather, had the wonderful name of Sir James of the Rock.  James was born 1604 at Cape Noch, one of the family homes.    He married the widow Mary Browne in 1626 and a year later James Grier, who would immigrate to Maryland, entered this life.  Sir James inherited the family estate, including Lag Castle from his brother, John who died without an heir in 1638. 


It remains a puzzle how James of Maryland became an indentured servant when he appears to be the first born of a well-to-do family?  Is our primary source incorrect, and was our James a Covenator, that is one who wished to worship as a radical Presbyterian?  Was he captured and transported to the New World for his transgressions as were other Griersons in the area?

[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/-29DqnOqKoD0/TjKj6dOWZOI/AAAAAAAACgI/uPN-L1vApfo/s320/2011+6-8+Glencairn+Parish+sign.JPG]
Above the church sign at Glencairn, a village a few miles north of the Maxwell home and a few miles west of Cape Noch, a home of the extensive Grierson family and our great grandfathers.


More in later posts on this fascinating time in history....
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When We Were Greers, Part XXXII
A Long Line of Griersons who Lived at Lag
by Glenn N.  Holliman


In my research in numerous libraries and archives in the lowlands of Scotland this past June 2011, I found considerable information on my family tree that descended through a prominent Scottish family named the Griersons.


Below the remains of Lag (g) Castle, now a farm, several miles east of the small village of Dunscone, Dumfrieshire.  The name may be spelled with either one or two 'l's.
[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/-lqo37ewRv_Q/TkmCLrTKMgI/AAAAAAAACi4/ll7aeYGPWPs/s320/2011+6-8+Lord+of+Lag+tower.JPG]
                                                                               Photo by Barb Holliman, June 2011


Who were the earlier Lords of Lag?  Here are their names and time lines.  More than you may want to know about all these great grandfathers.

9th Lord of Lag, and the grandfather of our James Grierson who migrated to Maryland, was Sir William Grierson, sasine of Lag in 1593.  A distinguished leader, he held many judicial and administrative offices in the West March of Scotland.  He served as a justice of the peace in 1610 and as sheriff of Dumfrieshire in 1615, 1617 and 1621.  He represented his district in the English parliament in 1617, 21 and 1625, before dying January 21, 1629.  His principle residence was Rockhall rather than Lag.  


He was born between 1567 and 1575 in Dumfrieshire, and married May 9, 1593 to Nichola Maxwell.  Nichola was born 1578 and is of the famous Maxwell family.  More on this family in later posts.  While this couple are my 10th great grandparents, they are Winston Churchill's 9th great grandparents!
8th Lord of Lag - Roger Grierson of Lag, born 1520, Dumfrieshire, married Helen Douglas at Drumlanrig, Scotland on April 21, 1566. He died 1593.  She had died earlier in 1578, age not sure.  Rockhall, another stately manor home, a few miles south of Dumfries, also had been inherited by Roger, who preferred Rockhall as residence.  From this time on, Lag Castle began deteriorating.  These are my generation's 11th great grandparents.


7th Lord of Lag - Robert, the half brother of Roger, was the last Grierson lord to live at Lag. 
6th Lord of Lag - Sir John Grierson, the father of  both the 7th and 8th Lord of Lag was laird for 50 years or so.  This John (1490 - 1559) rebuilt or restored the present tower.  His armorial panel stood oover the tower gateway.  Sir John Grierson married 1548 to a child bride, Egidia Kennedy, who had been born 1535 in Cullean, Ayrshire).  In 1547, he pledged 200 men to the service of England during the Tutor age.  This couple are my 12th great grandparents.  



[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/-7VspuRWL4Ag/TkmEK2VQLcI/AAAAAAAACi8/u7NMAKvqfDs/s320/2011+6-8+Lag+Tower+2.JPG]
The Lag stands on Crawston Hill, some 350 ft above sea level.  Top of the hill is 700 feet above the sea and site of Crawston Beacon, one of a chain of beacons set up to warn of an English invasion.  In 1595, Lag was still a substantial strong point.  Tower averaged 5 ft, 9 inches in thickness.

5th Lord of Lag  - Cuthbert succeeded took pocession of in 1492 and Rockhall in 1504.  Cuthbirth, 5th of Lag, died 1513 with no issue.  The title and land passed to Sir John Grierson, an infant, the father being killed at Flodden.
4th Lord of Lag - Roger Grierson, born 1474, and married Agnes Janet Douglas (1467 - 1519). This great grandfather of mine died September 9, 1513 when the Scots suffered a disasterous defeat at Flodden Field, Branxton, Northumberland, England.   This couple are my 13th great grandparents.


Roger Grierson, born 1439, who was not a Lord of Lag.  He married Isabella Gordoun in 1473, who has been born before 1460.  This Roger died June 1488 at Sauchieburn, near Sterling, Scotland.  This couple are my 14th great grandparents.


 3rd Lord of Lag, Vedast Grierson built the castle tower in 1460.  Vedast (1415 - 1487) married Margaret Glenonwym.  This couple are my 15th great grandparents. 


2nd Lord of Lag, Gilbert Grierson (1397 - before December 20, 1444)  married Isabella, daughter of Sir Duncan De  Kirkpatrick of Torthonwald on November 14, 1412.  Gilbert acquired Rockhall and Collin from the Kirkpatrick line.  Isabella died 1472, age about 72.   This couple are my 16th great grandparents.

1st Lord of Lag - Gilbert Grierson, described as a 'son of Duncan', rose in the 15th Century gathering extensive lands in Dumfriesshire and Galloway.  Early in the 1400s he purchased the lands of Lag and Bardman.  He was born in 1353 and died about 1425 in Lag.  He married before 1400 to Janet Glendening, born before 1383.  She died after 1400.  He had received charter of the lands of Lag on 6 Dec 1408 from his cousin, Henry, Earl of Orkney.  This couple are my 17th great grandparents.

Malcolm Dominus de MacGregor, Lord MacGregor, born before 1300 and died 1374; fought at Brannockburn in 1317 with Robert de Bruce. Married Mary MacAlpin, who was born before 1340.  This couple are my 18th great grandparents.
Lord Gregor MacGregor, born before 1239 and died 1300.  Married to Marion Fileon De Gilchrist who was born before 1280.  This couple are my 19th great grandparents.
Lord William MacGregor, born before 1165 and died 1238.  Married Margaret Lindsay, born before 1225.  This couple are my 20th great grandparents.
Sir Malcom MacGregor, born before 1113, died 1164.  Married Majory Lindsay, b before 1150.  This couple are my 21st great grandparents.
Sir John MacGregor, Lord of Glenorch, born  before 1100 and died about 1113.  Wife is unknown, recorded only as an 'English beauty'.  This is my 22nd great grandfather.
Gregor MacGregor of Gleurchy, born before 1005.  Married an unknown Campbell.  This couple are my 23rd great grandparents.
Sir John MacGregor, born before 962 and died 1004.  Married Alpina, born before 990.  This couple are my 24th great grandparents.
Gregor De Bhrattich, born before 940, married Dorviegilda, born before 945.  This couple are my 25th great grandparents.
Constantine,born before 900, married to Malvina, born before 920.  He died 940. This couple are my 26th great grandparents.
Prince Dongallus, born before 880 and died 900 in Italy.  Married to Princess Spontana, born in Ireland before 880. This royal couple are my 27th great grandparents.
Gregor MacAlpine, Regent of Stathclyde, born before 855 and died 889 in Dundur, Strathearn.  Unknown wife.  He is my 28th great grandfather.


Thane Dugal, born before 782 is my 29th great grandfather.
Hugh IV, born before 760, died  822, known as King of Dalriada and also Hugh the Poisonous.  Married to Fegusa, born before 765.  Hugh and Fegusa are my 30th great grandparents.

Aed Finn, King of Dalriada, born before 724, died 778, also known as  Ethafind, ruled 733 – 764.  Married to a queen consort.  This King is one of my tens of thousands 31 great grandparents.
Hugh III, born before 696, died 733, also known as Eugene IV, ruled 707-724, married to a queen consort.  Hugh III is my 32nd great grandfather.

Hugh II, born before 680, died 697, King of Dalriada, ruled 691-695.  Married to a queen consort. Here the line stops at my 33rd great grandfather!
Perhaps more than you wanted to know!  Using the McGregor line, our ancestors go back to the 7th Century A.D.

12/31/11
More Adema Photographs
Bob Adema, a Great Grandson of G. W. and Frances Wilson Osborne
by Glenn N. Holliman

With this post, I begin a series of articles on that part of my Mother's family that lived in Damascus, Virginia in the first 3/4ths of the 20th Century.  My Great Aunt Pearl Osborne was born in Ashe County, North Carolina in 1890.  While living in Damascus as a teenager in the first decade of the 20th Century, she met a descendant of one of the founding families of this Appalachian community - Dave Wright.  They married in 1911, and together ran the Damascus Inn.  For decades, Dave operated the creek - driven generator for electrical service in the small village.  For years on Saturday night, he operated the projectors at the local movie 'palace'.


My second cousin is Bob Adema.  His Mother, Gladys Osborne Adema, and my Mother, Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick, were first cousins.  Gladys, along with her sister Doris and brother Bascomb K. Osborne, were raised by their Aunt Pearl and Uncle Dave when their mother, Doris Kruger Osborne, died prematurely in 1922 in Baltimore, Maryland.  


The story of this interesting family situation, and how it impacted the lives of the three children will unfold in future articles.  As for now, here is a nostalgic look at a beautiful automobile lovingly restored by cousin Bob.  


On two occasions I have been pleasantly entertained for lunch at the home of Bob and Gayle Adema. Bob is a grandson of Bascomb W. Osborne, one of the five adult sons of G.W. and Frances W. Osborne. Now retired, one of his hobbies is maintaining his 1946 Ford, pictured below.
[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/-LwrdmgZueBw/Tni2KWnFSLI/AAAAAAAACpA/oKkeIeN8W1s/s400/100_5746.jpg]

My wife, Barb, sitting on the passenger side with Bob driving, insisted on a spin!  I was relegated to the back seat, discovering a two door is not as easy to exit as when one was ten years or so in age.
[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/-JULuYJNhNWQ/Tni2fZ4OpyI/AAAAAAAACpI/Gp9fdyb7YWE/s400/100_5749.jpg]

Bob has altered the dash board, installing a tape deck and air conditioning controls.  The Ford has over 350 horse power, but with a (gasp) modern Chevy engine!
[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/-n-3IXpqk3C0/Tni2xzP7FSI/AAAAAAAACpM/Ywbd67Ly0lg/s320/100_5748.jpg]


Bob comes by his mechanical aptitude naturally through several sides of the family.  His grandfather, Bascomb W.  Osborne, as well as Bascomb's brother Bill Osborne, were both auto mechanics from the 1920s to the 1950s.

Our thanks to Bob and Gayle for lunch, family talk and ride in a legend, the first Ford model produced after World War II.


Next posting, Bob and I go to Damascus, Virginia to explore the town nestled in a beautiful valley surrounded by high mountains which sheltered our recent ancestors.
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When We Were Boones, Part VIII
by Glenn N. Holliman

Just last week my wife and I were driving I-40 east through western North Carolina, when we came upon the Mocksville exit.  As we approached the town, I asked if she would like to see the Squire and Sarah Boone graves.  She said yes, so we took Exit 168 and just east of the intersection came up on the following historical sign which I had not seen in my previous visit to the area.
[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/-JBJqYRELYBs/TveewTitm_I/AAAAAAAAC6Q/CXlA8y1KWC4/s320/2011+12+Mocksville%252C+NC+Boone+farm+site.JPG]

Hmm...I had taken Exit 170 the previous spring.  A little exploring and I realized the Boone cemetery is only a mile or two from the Boone farmstead historical sign, as the 'crow flies'.  Much of the area is still farmland, but the 'urbanization' of the area due to the Interstate is eating into the original land deeded to the Boones over 250 years ago.

Ironically, just a hundred yards or so away from the Boone tract is another sign commemorating another local resident, who lived a hundred years later.  Hinton Rowan Helper is generally known only to southern historians today, but his book damning slavery in the late 1850s added to the passions that unleashed the Civil War, a conflict that brought devestation to many of the descendants of Squire and Sarah Boone.
[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/-I6_mrwdnHmw/TvegWpsI2EI/AAAAAAAAC6c/-cMv-RW3S54/s320/2011+12+Mocksville%252C+NC+Hinton+R.+Helper+site.JPG]

Below, my wife, Barb, snapped this picture of yours truly comtemplating my 7th great grandparents grave sites.  Squire was born in Devonshire, England in 1696s and immigrated through Bristol, England to Philadelphia and the Welsh settlement.  Later he moved to a farm near Pottsville, Pennsylvania until in the 1750s. An old man for the time, he migrated south to the Granville Tract of North Carolina.  There he died in 1765 and rests today on the edge of his former property.

Sarah Morgan Boone entered life in the Welsh settlement outside of Philadelphia, her parents from Wales.  She died in 1777. One historian believes her death 'freed' her youngest son, Daniel, to finally leave the area and open the settlement of what became Kentucky. Perhaps, but my 6th great uncle and his parents had been demonstrating wander-lust for some time.
[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/-hW3qwJIzmFg/TvehvymPdSI/AAAAAAAAC6o/PFtf9MluyKU/s320/2011+12+Mocksville%252C+NC+Boone+cemetery+with+Glenn.JPG]

After the above snapshot, we went back to the car, drove through a sprawl of fast food stores, gasoline stations et al, entered I-40 at Exit 170 and continued our journey to family further east.  We American families still do considerable 'wandering', especially at holiday times.

Next posting...the family history journey continues at this blog site....thanks for your kind comments through the past year!
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When We Were Boones, Part VII
[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/-vvD8SFPGQ8c/TiNHXKEeTtI/AAAAAAAACb8/iwrVGUkGBHM/s320/2011+Apr+Mocksville%252C+NC%252C+Boone+and+Wilcoxson+cemetery.JPG]
The Resting Place of Squire and Sarah Boone
by Glenn N. Holliman


Above is the memorial to the Boones in the background of a 18th and 19th Century cemetery in Mocksville, North Carolina.  Belowis an ingenious marker showing in metal the locations of the Boone and Wilcoxson family farms, our ancestors, in Wilkes County.  The first photo is the entire plaque and the second a close up of the map.  So next time, with more time, one must visit the old homesteads! 

[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/-UdGA6qWwv8k/TiNGvdOWXxI/AAAAAAAACb0/hYaGjjvttKc/s320/2011+Apr+Mocksville%252C+NC+Boone+memorial.JPG]

[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/-agvhst40c-0/TiNGlNseCDI/AAAAAAAACbw/-aHw9a3wPPk/s320/2011+Apr+Mocksville%252C++NC+Boone+landmarks.JPG]

One of our great uncles, a brother of Daniel Boone and our 6th great grandmother, Sara Boone Wilcoxson, was Israel Boone who is buried beside his parents.
[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/-d0I-3Wp2ofE/TiNHK1fN6MI/AAAAAAAACb4/Qvkjma8M0uQ/s320/2011+Apr+Mocksville%252C+NC%252C+grave+of+Israel+Boone%252C+great+uncle.JPG]

Daniel himself lies buried at the state capitol in Frankfort, Kentucky.

Next posting, we begin a series on several descendants of G.W. and Frances Wilson Osborne....
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When We Were Boones, Part VI
The Final Resting Place of Squire and Sarah Boone
by Glenn N. Holliman

Last spring I pulled off I-85 at Mocksville, North Carolina, drove east a mile toward town, and found the cemetery of my generation's 7th great grandparents.  Granted I ran some internet photos last year of the cemetery, but these are my own photos and several reveal new insights into our family history.
[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/-qRvPccWFHkM/TiMbly0E69I/AAAAAAAACbM/F58obadk-9M/s320/2011+Apr+Mocksville%252C+NC+marker.JPG]

Below is the reconstructed memorial with embedded original grave stones of Squire (1696 - 1765) and Sarah (1700 - 1777).
[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/-s6wypBz_rIE/TiMdmuioh4I/AAAAAAAACbk/AAf0O6kyYBI/s400/2011%2BApr%2BMocksville%252C%2BNC%252C%2Bsite%2Bof%2BBoone%2Bgraves.JPG]

[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/-ZWGl8sMHEhw/TiMd2gyQhnI/AAAAAAAACbs/LHblO1nMRTw/s400/2011%2BApr%2BMocksville%252C%2BNC%2BSquire%2BBoone.JPG]



This is Squire's original marker.
Below is Sarah's rustic marker.
[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/-twBN-p5-fuM/TiMcwdUQnvI/AAAAAAAACbU/gWGcsrNCuc8/s320/2011+Apr+Sara+Boone%2527s+grave%252C+Mocksville%252C+NC.JPG]

More in a later posting....
BLOG ARCHIVETHE FAMILIES OF FRANCES WILSON OSBORNE AND G.W. OSBORNE, JR.
PHOTOGRAPHS AND ARTICLES ON THE HISTORY OF THE ANCESTORS AND DESCENDANTS OF FRANCES WILSON OSBORNE (1851-1940) AND GEORGE WASHINGTON OSBORNE, JR. (1846 - 1927)
THE FAMILIES OF FRANCES WILSON OSBORNE AND G.W. OSBORNE, JR.
[image: http://img1.blogblog.com/img/icon18_wrench_allbkg.png]
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Some Families of Damascus, Virginia, Part III
by Glenn N. Holliman

This is the third of a series of stories with photographs of  Dave and Pearl Osborne Wright and their many years of life in Damascus, Virginia.

Robert David Wright was a descendant of the 18th Century family that founded this village which snuggles between two mountain ranges.  According to historian Louise F. Hall, there were hopes in the late 19th Century to develop an iron industry, but the deposits were only on the surface and not commercially viable.  Lumber companies did discover the timber and by the middle 1920s had decimated the surrounding forests. 
[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/-2W3Anu7QZFg/TxLtaVED3gI/AAAAAAAADI8/asySHDDUW6Y/s320/1900+ca+Damascus%252C+VA+Dave+Wright%252C+Backbone+Rock.jpg]




This picture was probably made around 1912 of Dave Wright at the Backbone, a ridge line on southwest of town.  The rail road in the early 1900s blasted a tunnel through the ridge.  The dramatic escarpment of a solid jagged rock formation became a popular recreation point for young people.
[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/-eQOTSEg5XRk/TxLu2M0ydxI/AAAAAAAADJE/inw8YD8bKnU/s320/1900s+ca+Damascus%252C+VA++Dave+Wright+and+Pearl+on+tracks.jpg]
Above, Dave and his young wife, Pearl, operate a foot driven rail car, probably enjoying a day out at the Backbone.


In September 2011, my second cousin, Bob Adema and other family members, visited Damascus and the Backbone, now as a century later, a National Forest Recreational Park.
[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/-cvkc90azY10/TxLvZiuxMSI/AAAAAAAADJM/9e_hx-R9X5s/s320/2011+9+Backbone+Rock%252C+TN+Bob+Adema.JPG]
Bob Adema's mother, Gladys Osborne Adema, was raised by Pearl and Dave Wright in Damascus after her mother died in 1923.  The Wrights never had children of their own, but raised Gladys, her sister Doris and her brother Bascomb Osborne at their home in Damascus.  The Wrights are the great uncle and aunt of both Bob Adema and this writer.

More on the Backbone and early photographs of Damascus in the next posting....
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Some Families of Damascus, Virginia, Part II
by Glenn N. Holliman

In my last post, I began a series on a small village, a little over 1,000 persons in 2010, nestled between two mountain ranges, the Iron and Holston, and joined at the edge of the downtown by two small rivers, the Laurel and the Beaver. Damascus, Washington County, Virginia lies next to the upper East Tennessee border and welcomes trekkers from both the Virginia Creeper and Appalachian trails. It remains an eclectic community of B and Bs, cafes, bike shops and a good local library.  In the winter, the sunshine sometimes has difficulty reaching the United Methodist Church, so deep is this recessed cove at the south edge of town. 

What interests me is that my great aunt and uncle and several second cousins spent their lives, whole or in part, contributing to this community, assisting its economic base and leading its renaissance after the collapse of the iron and timber industry in the early 1900s.

Guiding in this process is 'A History of Damascus, 1793-1950', well-written by the late local historian of Damascus, Louise Fortune Hall. My historical tidbits are from her excellent work (below). I purchased my copy last autumn at the library.
                                                                  [image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/-6CvK5mcwsOk/Tw8qdX_jv3I/AAAAAAAADFU/r6m7424khyM/s320/2011+Damascus%252C+VA+History+of+Damascus.jpg]
Louise Hall relates that in 1785 a father and son, Jacob and John Wright, a Revoluntionary War veteran, settled along what is now Glade Spring Road, now a state highway that leads northwest to I-81.  A descendant of these Wrights, David Wright, my great uncle and his brother, Ward, were born in Damascus in the late 1800s.  Dave married by great aunt Pearl Osborne Wright in 1911.  Pearl had lived in Damascus from 1908 to 1910 when her paarents (my great grandparents), George Washington and Frances Wilson Osborne ran a general store and boarding house.

Below is a photograph from approximately 1910 showing the Osborne boarding house and store on what is now main street Damascus.  G.W. and Frankie Osborne are surrounded by some of their children.  The tall woman in the centre is Pearl O. Wright and next to her is my grandmother, Mayme T. Osborne Stansbery.  This picture has been in the possession of Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick, my mother.
[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/-DgBcK7eQjpA/Tw8u3GvBk4I/AAAAAAAADFk/gR0_OBRbmuA/s400/1900+circa+Damascus%252C+Virginia.jpg]

When my wanderlust great grandfather, G.W. Osborne, still looking for his elusive forture, moved the family to Afton, Tennessee in 1910, Dave Wright followed and asked the hand of Pearl in marriage.  From 1911 until his death in 1962, Damascus was their home.

Next posting, more on a family in Damascus....
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The Families of Damascus, Virginia, Part I
On the Road to Damascus
by Glenn N. Holliman

Let's begin with a Google map of Western North Carolina, upper East Tennessee and a portion of Southwest Virginia.  By the late 1700s most of my mother's ancestors had made their way from Pennsylvania and the Chesapeake colonies to the uplands and valleys of the Appalachians found on this map. They were the Osbornes, Greers, Wilsons, Boones, Browns, Wilcoxsons and others.
[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/-m5lZ2dXT5VQ/TwdOXdGVz2I/AAAAAAAADCc/JTaLUh6fQKQ/s320/2012+1+Damascus+Map.jpg]
The red dot in the bottom center is the approximate location of the Civil War farm of my great great grandparents, Isaac and Caroline Greer Wilson, in Sutherland, near Creston, Ashe County, North Carolina.  The blue dot underlined in red is Damascus, Virginia, and in the center left underlined is Bristol, Tennessee the birthplace of my mother.  Geraldine Stansbery Holliman Feick, my mother,and I are descendants of all the above families.

 On her father's side, Charles S. Stansbery, Sr., mother descended from a family that landed in the Maryland colony in the late 1600s, made their way thought through the Piedmont areas of Virginia and the Carolinas, before offspring settled by the 1850s in the Knox and Greene counties of East Tennessee.

For a period of time, this Southern Appalachian area was America's frontier.  The Cherokee and Shawnee lost their hunting grounds by the late 1700s and eventually most of their homeland as the tide of European-Americans kept pushing westward.  Many of the offspring of my families moved into Tennessee and Kentucky and within a generation across the Missisippi and eventually to the Rockies and beyond.  Daniel Boone, my 6th great uncle, founded Kentucky but eventually would die in Missouri.

Of course, not all children and grandchildren of the named families above moved west.  Many made the Appalachian mountains, coves and river bottom land their homes.  To this day, one will find my distant cousins living in Ashe and Watauga counties in North Carolina, Knox, Greene, Sullivan and Washington counties in Tennessee and Grayson and other counties in Virginia.

In this series of posts, I am exploring the lives of ancestors who remained in the Appalachian highlands, in particular a great aunt and uncle, Pearl Osborne Wright and her husband, Dave.  They made an impact on the small community of Damascus, Virginia, in the first half of the 20th Century and left an archive of photographs that capture their lives and the fashions of their time.
[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/-7o1uM87F9n8/TwnOYOCtZvI/AAAAAAAADCs/QQa8TsDdZok/s320/1910s+Damascus%252C+VA+Dave+and+Pearl+Osborne+Wright+perhaps.jpg]
Above David and Pearl Osborne Wright in Damascus, Virginia early 1900s with their puppies.  Many of the photographs to be posted are courtesy of my second cousin, Phyliss Akers Mink, a great niece of the Wright.


My Great Aunt Pearl was not the first of my ancestors to travel through Damascus, Virginia.  That honor belongs to Daniel Boone, a 6th great uncle of mine.  A few miles south of Damascus, in Laurel Blooming, Tennessee is a monument (pictured below) to his explorations.  He traversed what is now the upper East Tennessee and Southwest Virginia valleys and river bottoms, before forcing the Cumberland Gap.
[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/-cZhjFDn0XlY/TwnNp8xV90I/AAAAAAAADCk/xxaS9M9Gu7U/s320/2011+9+Laural+Blooming%252C+Daniel+Boone+Trail+marker.JPG]

Next posting, unfolding the history of Damascus, Virginia and my relatives....
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THE FAMILIES OF FRANCES WILSON OSBORNE AND G.W. OSBORNE, JR.
PHOTOGRAPHS AND ARTICLES ON THE HISTORY OF THE ANCESTORS AND DESCENDANTS OF FRANCES WILSON OSBORNE (1851-1940) AND GEORGE WASHINGTON OSBORNE, JR. (1846 - 1927)
THE FAMILIES OF FRANCES WILSON OSBORNE AND G.W. OSBORNE, JR.
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Some Families of Damascus, Virginia, Part V
by Glenn N. Holliman


This is the fifth in a series of stories with photographs of my great uncle and aunt, Dave and Pearl Osborne Wright and their many years of life in Damascus, Virginia.  Pearl is the grand daughter of Isaac and Caroline Greer Wilson of Ashe County, North Carolina.


According to historian Louise Hall, Dave's father, P.W. Wright constructed a large home in 1898 along Beaver Creek.  The home became a boarding house, an inn if you will, for the travelling lumber and rail road men who frequented Damascus during the boom years from 1901 to 1926.  Being so close to mountain-fed rivers, the large, rumbustious creeks occasionally overflowed.  During a disastrous flood in 1901, water ran through the first floor, stranding guests on the second floor. 

As time passed, Dave and Pearl took over running the inn.  For a while in the 1910s, they may have been assisted by another great uncle of mine, Toby Osborne, one of five sons of G.W. and Frances Wilson Osborne, natives of Ashe County, North Carolina.
[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/-Fje62uvoQ5Y/TyGzOh7KEzI/AAAAAAAADP8/nPIwMG7Djjc/s320/1910s+ca+Damascus,+VA++Wright+house.jpg]








Left, the Damascus Inn in the 1910s. Notice the picket fence and unpaved street.  The persons on the right and left are believed to be Pearl Osborne and Dave Wright.  The tall gentleman in the middle is unidentified.

The Damascus Inn would serve as the back drop for several generations of family photos, some of which will appear later in this series.  Below the house from a 1910s photograph taken on the bank of Beaver Creek near the town bridge.
[image: http://2.bp.blogspot.com/-RYVVsxeL5WU/TyG0-Pq_5ZI/AAAAAAAADQM/tyge06lA-4U/s320/1910s+ca+Damascus,+VA+Wright+yard+perhaps.jpg]
 Today the Damascus Inn, the home first of P.W. Wright and later one of his sons, Dave Wright, is a private  home.  In the fall of 2011, a political sign had replaced one from a century earlier that had read 'Damascus Inn'.   The "Inn", a piece of local history, appears well-preserved by the current owners.
[image: http://1.bp.blogspot.com/-5sNT8aShq_c/TyG3HwjhF-I/AAAAAAAADQU/hzM83ZE3Iwo/s320/2011+9+Damascus,+VA+Wright+House+on+main+street+by+bridge.JPG]

Next posting, scenes of the boardwalk of Damascus....
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Some Families of Damascus, Virginia, Part IV
by Glenn N. Holliman

This is the fourth in a series of articles on Damascus, Virginia and how one family, my great uncle and aunt, Dave and Pearl Osborne Wright, lived and contributed to the well-being of the community in the first half of the 20th Century.
  
In 1901 the Virginia-Carolina Railroad reached Damascus from Abington, Virginia.  Timber began being removed from the thick forests surrounding the cove and covering the high mountains that surrounded the isolated village.  In 1906, the Laurel Line opened to the south connecting Damascus to Mountain City,Tennessee.

Historian Louise Hall describes the Laurel Railway as a narrow gauge operation that often carried young people into the forests for picnics and then picked them up to bring them home.  Below are some photos illustrating Ms. Hall's information.
[image: http://4.bp.blogspot.com/-F8cNSok-3hU/TxW67sFMlWI/AAAAAAAADJ0/oQsTxiL1so8/s320/1910s+Damascus%252C+VA+on+the+tracks.jpg]
The names of the persons on this small track car are not known, but one assumes Dave Wright in on the far right and probably his young wife, Pearl Osborne Wright, is sitting in front of him.  If relatives recognize unidentified persons in this and other photographs, please email the writer at Glennhistory@gmail.com. 
[image: http://3.bp.blogspot.com/-Gfl_k8yBgVM/TxW7NAXj0vI/AAAAAAAADJ8/WDZ-Z2-5Q1k/s320/1910s+ca+Damascus%252C+VA+Dave+Wright+in+middle.jpg]
As ever we are indebted for the photographs to my second cousin, Phyliss Ackers Mink, whose mother, Doris Osborne Ackers, grew up in Damascus from 1923 until her marriage to Elmer "Flea" Ackers in the 1930s.  Dave and Pearl Osborne Wright may be the couple (right picture) on the far right side of the person in the dark jacket.  The man in the dark coat may be Dave's brother, Ward Wright, who also lived in Damascus.


Railroads served Damascus until 1926 when operations ceased as the timber had been harvested.  Economically the trains could not survive with out the trees.  Later many of the privately owned forests were purchased by the U.S. Government and have become national forests.  This is another story, one of the Civilian Conservation Corps locating a camp near Damascus during the New Deal.  The CCC location would impact the lives of the Wrights and Osborne siblings.  More later on that story.


Next posting, more the the Wrights and their lives in Damascus, Virginia....
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